



INSTRUCTION MANUAL

9624-50

PQA-HiVIEW PRO

HIOKI E.E. CORPORATION

User's License Agreement

Important

Please read the following agreement carefully. This user's license agreement (hereafter referred to as Agreement) is a legal contract between the software user (individual or institution) and HIOKI E. E. CORPORATION (hereafter referred to as HIOKI). The term "software" includes any related electronic documentation and computer software and media, as well as any printed matter (such as the Instruction Manual). By installing, reproducing, or using the software, you, the Licensee, agree to

By installing, reproducing, or using the software, you, the Licensee, agree to accept the license terms set forth in this Agreement.

This software is protected by copyright laws, international copyright agreements, as well as non-corporate laws. The software is a licensed product, and is not sold to the user.

1. License

This Agreement grants you, the Licensee, a license to install a single copy of the software on a specified computer system.

2. Explanation of other rights and restrictions

- -1. Restrictions on reverse engineering, decompiling, and disassembling: You may not reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble the software.
- -2. Separation of components:

This software is licensed for use as a single product. You may not separate the components for use on multiple computer systems.

-3. Loaning:

You may not loan or lease the software.

-4. Transfer of software:

You may transfer full rights in accordance with this Agreement. However, if you do so, you may not retain any copy of the software, but must transfer the software in its entirety (all components, media, related documentation such as the Instruction Manual, and this Agreement), and must ensure that the receiver of the software agrees with the terms set forth in this Agreement.

-5. Cancellation:

In the event that the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement are violated, HIOKI retains the right to cancel this Agreement without compromise of any of its other rights. In this event, you must destroy all copies of the software and its components.

3. Copyright

The title and copyright rights concerning the software's related documentation, such as the Instruction Manual and copies of the software, are the property of HIOKI and other licensors, and are protected by copyright laws and international agreement regulations. Accordingly, you must treat the software as you would any other copyrighted document. However, you are permitted to make copies as indicated in (A) and (B) below provided such copies are not intended for use other than back-up purposes.

- (1) You may make a single copy of the software.
- (2) You may install this software on a single computer. However, you may not reproduce the documentation supplied with the software, such as the Instruction Manual.

4. Dual media software

You may receive the same software on more than one type of media. However, regardless of the type and size of media provided, you may only use one media type and only on a single computer. You must not use or install the other media on any other computer. Furthermore, except when transferring the software as stipulated above, you may not loan, lease, or transfer the other media to any other user.

5. Warranty

- -1. HIOKI reserves the right to make changes to the software specifications without any prior warning. If HIOKI releases a new version of the software, it will provide registered users with information about the revised software.
- -2. If the software does not operate in accordance with the supplied Instruction Manual, or the software media or Instruction Manual are damaged in any way, you have one year from the date of purchase to apply for either an exchange or repair at HIOKI's discretion.
- -3. In no event will HIOKI be liable for any damages resulting from fire, earthquake, or actions of a third party under the conditions stated in item number 2 above, or for any damage caused as a result of your using the software incorrectly or under unusual circumstances. Further, the warranty is invalid if the following occurs:
 - (1) Damage incurred through transport, moving, droppage, or any other kind of impact after you purchased the software.
 - (2) Damage incurred through any form of alteration, unwarranted servicing, or any other type of mistreatment.
- -4. In the event that the software is exchanged or repaired, the period of warranty expires on the latest occurring date out of the day stated in the original warranty, and exactly 6 months from the day the exchanged/repaired software is returned to you.
- -5. Regardless of the grounds for making a legal claim, HIOKI and its licensors will not be liable for any damage incurred (including, but not limited to: lost profits, suspension of business, loss of data or lost savings) unstated in the warranty terms for the use of this software. This is true even if HIOKI is notified of the possibility of such damages. In any event, HIOKI's liability shall be limited only to replacing defective software with software that is not defective

i

Contents

Introduction	1
Confirming Package Contents and Handling the CD	1
Symbols and Terminology	2
Chapter 1	
Overview	3
Product Overview and Features	3
Operation Flowchart	4
Chapter 2	
Setup	5
Hardware and OS Requirements	
(System Configuration)	5
Installing the 9624-50 PQA-HiView Pro Program	6
Uninstalling the Program	9
Chapter 3	
Basic Operations	_11
Starting and Closing the Program	11
Starting the Program	11
Closing the Program	12
Loading Data	13
File Types	13
Loading Data	14
Viewing Measurement Data	16
Screens	16
Changing Windows	17
Window List	18
Viewing Event Phenomena	19

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)	21
Viewing Measurement Settings	23
Printing Measurement Data	24
Arranging Windows (Window Layout)	26
Copying a Display Image to the Clipboard	27
Generating Reports	28 32 33
Storing Measurement Data in a CSV File Convert Time-Series Data to CSV Format Converting Waveform Data to CSV Format Converting Demand Data to CSV Format Before Converting Harmonic Voltage Measurement Data (EN50160 Mode) to CSV Format (Hioki 3196 only) Making Use of CSV File Data (Practical Applications)	 35 38 39 40 41
Downloading Measurement Data from the Power Quality Analyzer (LAN Download Function)	44
Saving and Loading Settings Files About Settings Files Specify the Save Destination for the Settings File Beforehand Saving a Compound File Loading a Compound File	46 46 46 47 47

Chapter 4 Analyzing Measurement Data from the Hioki 3196

Hioki 3196 Measurement Data Window Layout	49
Window Display	49
Menu Bar Operations	50
Tool Bar Operations	53
Switching Modes	55

49

Viewing a Time Series Graph		
Viewing Events as a List [EVENT LIST]	62	
Viewing Event Measurement Data[EVENT DATA] Opening and Switching Event Data Windows	 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 	
Viewing Voltage Fluctuation Details	73	
Viewing Energy Consumption [Integrated Power Window]	74	
Viewing a Demand Graph[Demand Window]		
Testing Measurement Data Conformance		
Viewing a Delta V10 Flicker Graph 	80	
Viewing an IEC Flicker Graph[IEC Flicker Window]	81	
Viewing Setting Conditions for Measurement Data [SYSTEM]	82	

iv
Contents

Viewing EN50160 Mode Measurement Data	83
Overview Window	83
Harmonic Window	85
Signaling Window	86
Measurement Result Classification Window	87

91

Chapter 5 Analyzing Measurement Data from the Hioki 3197

Hioki 3197 Measurement Data Window Layout Window Display Menu Bar Operations Tool Bar Operations	91 91 92 95
Viewing a Time Series Graph	96 96 98 99
Viewing Events as a List[EVENT LIST]	100
Viewing Event Measurement Data	 101 102 103 104 105 106
Viewing an Inrush Current Graph [Inrush Current Event Graph]	107
Viewing Energy Consumption[Integrated Power Window]	108
Viewing a Demand Graph[Demand Window]	109
Viewing Setting Conditions for Measurement Data [SYSTEM]	110

Chapter 6 Specificati

Specifications	111
General Specifications	111
Hioki 3196 Function Specifications and Calculation Formulas	111
Hioki 3197 Function Specifications	119
Appendix	A 1
Appendix 13196 Data-header Composition	A 1
Appendix 23197 Data-header Composition	A 5
Index	Index 1

Introduction

Thank you for purchasing the HIOKI "Model 9624-50 PQA-HiVIEW PRO." To obtain maximum performance from the instrument, please read this manual carefully, and keep it handy for future reference.

The 9624-50 PQA-HiVIEW PRO is a PC program for use with the Model 3196 and 3197 Power Quality Analyzers.

Registered trademarks

- Microsoft, Windows and Excel and registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the USA.
- Pentium is a registered trademark of Intel Corporation in the USA.

Confirming Package Contents and Handling the CD

When you receive the software, inspect it carefully to ensure that no damage occurred during shipping.

If damage is evident, or if it fails to operate according to the specifications, contact your dealer or Hioki representative. 9624-50 PQA-HiVIEW PRO Program Software (CD)

Instruction Manual

ACAUTION

CD Handling Precautions

Follow these precautions to ensure safe operation and to obtain the full benefits of the various functions.

- Always hold the disc by the edges, so as not to make fingerprints on the disc or scratch the printing.
- Never touch the recorded side of the disc. Do not place the disc directly on anything hard.
- Do not wet the disc with volatile alcohol or water, as there is a possibility of the label printing disappearing.
- To write on the disc label surface, use a spirit-based felt pen. Do not use a ball-point pen or hardtipped pen, because there is a danger of scratching the surface and corrupting the data. Do not use adhesive labels.
- Do not expose the disc directly to the sun's rays, or keep it in conditions of high temperature or humidity, as there is a danger of warping, with consequent loss of data.
- To remove dirt, dust, or fingerprints from the disc, wipe with a dry cloth, or use a CD cleaner. Always wipe spherical from the inside to the outside, and do no wipe with circular movements. Never use abrasives or solvent cleaners.
- Hioki shall not be held liable for any problems with a computer system that arises from the use of this CD, or for any problem related to the purchase of a Hioki product.

In the interests of ongoing product developments, there may be minor discrepancies between screen displays and the operating instructions, and in the data conversion process.

Symbols and Terminology

The following symbols in this manual indicate the relative importance of cautions and warnings.

Symbols

<u>ACAUTION</u>	Indicates that incorrect operation presents a possibility of injury to the user or damage to the instrument.
NOTE	Indicates advisory items related to performance or correct operation of the instrument.

(p.)	Indicates the location of reference information.
*	Indicates that descriptive information is provided below.

Mouse Operation Terminology

Click	Press and quickly release the left button of the mouse.
Right-click	Press and quickly release the right button of the mouse.
Double click	Quickly click the left button of the mouse twice.
Drag	While holding down the left button of the mouse, move the mouse and then release the left button to deposit the chosen item in the de- sired position.
Activate	Click on a window on the screen to activate that window.

Other Terminology

- Unless otherwise specified, "Windows" represents Windows 2000, or Windows XP.
- Dialog box represents a Windows dialog box.
- Menus, dialogs, buttons in a dialog, and other names on the screen are indicated in brackets.
- Example: File-Open indicates that you should click File in the menu bar, and then click Open in the displayed pull-down menu.

Overview

Chapter 1

Product Overview and Features

The Hioki 9624-50 PQA-HiView Pro is a software application for analyzing binary-format measurement data from the Hioki 3196 and 3197 Power Quality Analyzers on a computer.

The PQA-HiView Pro can load and read only binary data recorded with the Hioki 3196 and 3197 Power Quality Analyzers.

It cannot read text or CSV data.

The 9624-50 PQA-HiView Pro offers the following functions.





Setup

Chapter 2

Hardware and OS Requirements (System Configuration)

The 9624-50 PQA-HiView Pro requires the following hardware and software. Please verify your system configuration.

Computer Type	PC/AT compatible
Operating System	English version of any of the following operating systems:Microsoft Windows 2000Microsoft Windows XP
Memory	At least 128 MB
Hard Disk	At least 128 MB free space
Display	XGA (1024 x 768 dots) or higher
Disk System	CD-ROM drive (Used only for installation)
Printer	Required for report printing on the computer. Either color or monochrome can be used, but the fastest possible printing is recom- mended.



For some models, proper operation cannot be guaranteed even when the above requirements are satisfied.

Installing the 9624-50 PQA-HiView Pro Program

Install the program by the following procedure. Windows XP or Windows 2000 should be installed by your Systems Administrator.

Example: Installing on Windows XP

Note: screen messages may differ slightly depending on the operating system.

NOTEInstallation may not be possible when other applications are running.Before installing, close all applications that you can.When an anti-virus program is running, installation may not be possible even when no virus exists. In this case, change your anti-virus program settings as necessary to allow installation to proceed.

Start the computer.

Close all running programs.

- Insert the program CD into the CD-ROM drive.
- **2** Double click **My Computer** to open it, then double click the CD-ROM icon.



In the English folder, double click **Setup.exe** (the extension may not be displayed) to start the installer.



5 In the installer, click **Next** and confirm the installation destination.



To change the installation des	stination
Choose Foldar	Select the installation folder in the Path field.

6 Click Install to start installing.



7 Remove the CD from the CD-ROM drive.

Refer to Chapter 3, "Basic Operations" (p. 11) for the next procedure.

Uninstalling the Program

Use the following procedure to uninstall the program.



Basic Operations Chapter 3

Starting and Closing the Program

Starting the Program





The main screen, entitled HIOKI 9624-50 PQA-HiVIEW PRO, appears.

Closing the Program

The program can be closed by any of the following methods.



Loading Data

Measurement data recorded with the Hioki 3196 or 3197 Power Quality Analyzer can be loaded by the PQA-HiView Pro program.

However, it can load only binary format measurement data. Text and CSV format data cannot be loaded.

To load measurement data:

3196

You can insert a PC Card with stored measurement data into a PC Card reader connected to the computer, or transfer the measurement data over LAN to the computer, and then load it. See: "Downloading Measurement Data from the Power Quality Analyzer (LAN Download Function)" (p. 44)

3197

You can use the special-purpose application program bundled with the Hioki 3197 to download the measurement data, and the load it.

See: The instructions (PDF) for the special-purpose application program on the CD-R supplied with the Hioki 3197

File Types

The data to be loaded is specified by its folder.

The following data files can be loaded from that folder.

F	ile Contents	File Extension	3196	3197
Setting data		.SET	•	•
TIME PLOT data		.ITV	•	•
Lists			•	•
Event data	Voltage/current waveforms	.EVT	•	•
Numerical values			•	
Flicker data (Delta V10, IEC)		.FLC	•	
Transient over voltage waveform data		.TRN	•	
Event voltage fluctuation data		.WDU	•	•
EN50160 data		EN50160.EN	•	
EN50160 event dat	а	EVENT.EN	•	
Inrush current grap	n data	.INR		•
Demand graph data	à	.DEM		•

Loading Data



Open button), or select File – Open on the menu bar.

The Open dialog box appears.

Select the folder containing the measurement data from the 3196 or 3197 to be loaded.



Measurement data from the 3196 or 3197 is stored in folders named as follows:

B + date + serial number (8 digits)

Example: **B6040302**



Click the **OK** button to load the selected data.



The loaded data is displayed on screen. Refer to the following for the details of each screen.

See: "Analyzing Measurement Data from the Hioki 3196" (p. 49) "Analyzing Measurement Data from the Hioki 3197" (p. 91)



NOTE

- New measurement data can still be loaded even after data has already been loaded. However, only most-recently loaded data can be displayed.
- Reading a folder containing a large amount of data may take some time. The time required to read the data depends on the computer system.

Estimated Loading Time

(Example) To load measurement data into the PQA-HiView Pro from a Flash ATA card inserted in the computer.

Loading time: About 1 minute

Loading conditions:

Computer System Configuration

Computer	400-MHz Pentium II
OS	Microsoft Windows 2000 Professional
Memory	128 MB

Measurement Data

Capacity	256 MB
ITV files	TIME PLOT(ALL DATA, MAX/MIN/AVE)
EVT files	1000 items (all transients)

Viewing Measurement Data

Screens

This section describes the program's windows. The windows for the Hioki 3196 and 3197 are slightly different. Refer to the window content descriptions for details.

See: "Hioki 3196 Measurement Data Window Layout " (p. 49)

"Hioki 3197 Measurement Data Window Layout " (p. 91)

When the Model 9624-50 starts up, the main screen appears. Measurement data windows are displayed on the main screen.

Example: After loading measurement data from Hioki 3196



Shows the current status and information about each window. Move the mouse over the tool bar to see tool descriptions. Windows can be changed from the menu bar or from the tool bar (for displaying windows).

Appears when you right click on each window. Operations are the same as on the menu bar.

Scroll bar

Changing Windows

You can change the selected window to a different window.

If the window you want to display is not already the active window, click it to make it active, or select it from the **Window** menu.

The selected window type is displayed to the right of the Window menu item.



2 Click an item to the right of the Window menu item, and select the window to switch to from the pull-down menu.



When a Time Plot window is active in step **1** above

The active window is replaced.



A pop-up menu appears when you right click on a window.

Click the window you want to activate. Items that are not selectable are grayed out.

Ctrl+A

A and B cursor...

Window List

Windows for analyzing data from the 3196

Window Name		See Page
Event List Wine	dow	(p. 62)
	RMS	(p. 58)
	Voltage	(p. 59)
Time Plot	Harmonics (Harmonic Fluctuations)	(p. 60)
	Interharm (Inter-Harmonic Fluctuations)	(p. 61)
	Event details	(p. 64)
	Voltage/Current	(p. 65)
Event Data Window	Voltage/Transient	(p. 66)
	Voltage	(p. 67)
	Current	(p. 68)
	Vector	(p. 69)
	DMM	(p. 70)
	Harmonics Bar Graph	(p. 71)
	Harmonics List	(p. 72)
ITIC Window	Tolerance Curve	(p. 76)
Delta V10 Flick	ker Window	(p. 80)
IEC Flicker Wi	ndow	(p. 81)
Voltage Fluctu	ation Event Graph	(p. 73)
Integrated Pow	ver Window	(p. 74)
Demand Winde	w	(p. 75)
	Overview	(p. 83)
EN50160	Harmonic	(p. 85)
Window	Signaling	(p. 86)
	Measurement Result Classification	(p. 87)
System Windo	W	(p. 82)

Windows for analyzing data from the 3197

Window Name		See Page
Event List V	Event List Window	
Time Plot	RMS	(p. 98)
Time Flot	Voltage	(p. 99)
	Event details	(p. 102)
Event Data	Voltage/Current	(p. 103)
Window	Voltage	(p. 104)
	Current	(p. 105)
Voltage Flue	(p. 106)	
Inrush Current Event Graph		(p. 107)
Integrated F	ower Window	(p. 108)
Demand Wi	ndow	(p. 109)
System Win	dow	(p. 110)

Viewing Event Phenomena

An event name or marker is displayed in each window at the location where an event has occurred (Event Marker function).

Each displayed window is interlinked, so by clicking an event's name or marker, you can view other characteristics related to that event in other windows.

Measurement data from the Hioki 3196 is displayed differently than that from the 3197.

	Event Display				
Event Viewing Windows	Event Occurrence	Voltage Fluctuation Graph (WDU event)	Inrush Current Graph (IN- RUSH event, Hioki 3197 only)		
	Event Category items indicate	the contents of events.			
Event List Window		The WDU column shows WDU events.	The INRUSH column shows INRUSH events.		
Time Plot Window	(Red) Event markers are displayed at the times that event oc- curred.	(Blue) Event markers are displayed at the times when voltage fluc- tuations occurred.	(Pink) Event markers are displayed at the times that inrush current occurred.		
Voltage Fluctuation Event Window	Displays the message,	Displays the waveform for the	event selected in another win-		
Inrush Current Graph Window (Hioki 3197 only)	"Specified file xxx does not exist."	dow.			
Event Data Window	Displays the waveform for the Event markers 💙 (yellow-gre	event selected in another windo en) are displayed at event occu	ow. rrences.		
ITIC Window (Hioki 3196 only)		 (CH1: Red) (CH2: Yellow-Green) (CH3: Blue) 			

Example: Viewing event phenomena in a Time Plot window

Event Marker



The selected event marker becomes hollow.



Click on overlapping event markers to display a menu on the graph.

Select an event marker from the menu.

If more than 30 event markers overlap, they are displayed in submenus of up to 30 markers each.

When multiple event markers overlap

Example: Graph of a voltage fluctuation event (WDU) in measurement data from Hioki 3196



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

The values measured at the A and B cursor positions (cursor values) can be displayed numerically. Maximum, minimum and average values within a span of measurement data (between cursors) can also be checked by demarcating the span with the cursors.

Measurement values can be confirmed in the A/B cursor dialog. An image of the displayed numerical values can be copied to other applications.

Windows supporting cursor measurement: Waveform and Graph windows

Example: Viewing measurement values in a Time Plot window.



Click the 👥 (A and B cursors) button, or select A and B cursor in the Window menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The A/B cursors appear in the window, and a dialog box indicates values at the cursor positions. Displayed contents differ according to the type of data displayed.



Click the A or B cursor button in the dialog box to select the cursor to move.



The values at the cursor positions in the active window are displayed.

To view the values at a particular point, activate the relevant window, and either click that point or press the left/right arrow keys to move the cursor to it.

To find the maximum, minimum and average values within a span, move the A/B cursors to demarcate the span.



Between A and B cursors

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)



Viewing Maximum, Minimum and Average Values

Click the Calculation between A and B cursor button.

Maximum, minimum and average values between A/B cursors are displayed.

		- RMS	IL CH1		Click	
	 A curso B curso 	Calcu A a	lation between and B cursor	n Cop	y J	
	A 09/011 B 09/031	5:55:00 0:15:00	6.469k 6.476k	6.535k 6.619k	6.508k 6.546k	
Maximum	11	8:25:00	0.006k	0.084k	0.038k	-
Average	MA> AVE MIN	 Values Values Values 	6.665k 6.555k 6.339k	6.747k 6.638k 6.514k	6.697k 6.600k 6.484k	
IVIIIIIIIIIIIIIII						

Copying a Dialog Box Image to the Clipboard

Click the Copy button.

2

	15 01 07	D. 47				Click
1 IL	HE PLUT -	RMS	U, CHI	r		_
0	A cursor	Calcu A z	lation between	Сору		
œ	B cursor					
			MIN M	4.	AVE	
A	09/01 15:5	55:00	6.469k	6.535k	6.508k	
В	09/03 10:1	15:00	6.476k	6.619k	6.546k	
_	1 18:2	25:00	0.006k	0.084k	0.038k	_
	MAX v	alues	6.665k	6.747k	6.697k	
	AVE v	alues	6.555k	6.638k	6.600k	
	MIN v	alues	6.339k	6.514k	6.484k	

Open a document in another application program such as Microsoft Word or Excel, and insert the image using an Insert or Paste operation.

For further details, see the Help file for your application program.

	-						1-1-1	a a d
A	Do	ocument - Word	Pad					×
Fil	е	Edit View Inser	t Format H	Help				
[2	2 8 8	M 🕺	B	n			
A	rial		▼ 10		Western	1	• B	Z
Ē	ζ.	•••!••••1	• • • • • • •	· 2 · ·	, î , , , ,	3 · ·	e į e e	- 4
		TIM	E PLOT RM	S U.CH1				
			MIN	MAX	AVE			
	A	09/01 15:55:00	6.469k	6.535k	6.508k			
	В	09/0310:15:00	6.476k	6.619k	6.546k			
	Γ	1 18:25:00	0.006k	0.084k	0.038k			
		MAX values	6.665k	6.747k	6.697k			
		AVE values	6.555k	6.638k	6.600k			
		MIN values	6.33 <mark>9</mark> k	6.514k	6.484k			

Viewing Measurement Settings

Instrument settings recorded on the Hioki 3196 or 3197 can be viewed in the Settings window. Of course, the settings cannot be changed here.

The Settings window can only be displayed when a SET file is loaded. In addition, the EN50160 setting tab is not displayed unless EN50160 data is loaded (Hioki 3196 only).

Refer to the window content descriptions for details.

See: 3196 measurement data: "Viewing Setting Conditions for Measurement Data [SYSTEM]" (p. 82)

3197 measurement data: "Viewing Setting Conditions for Measurement Data [SYSTEM]" (p. 110)



Click the 🛃 (Settings Icon) button or select View – SYSTEM from the menu bar.

The Settings window appears.

Select the tabs to view each setting.

Example: Hioki 3196 Settings Window

SY	STEM				×
	MEASURE	EVENT VOLT	AGE Í EVENT P	OWEB LUHarmonics LU	Harmonics P F 4 F
		123ch	4ch		
	Wring Clamp U Range PT Raito I Range CT Raito	3933/v341 1mV/49661 9.00006/v 0060.00 50.000 A 0001.00	AC 1mV/a 966 0006.V 0060.00 50.000 A 0001.00	U Reference Frequency FLI. Source U Calc Type Ham Calc THD Calc FF Type Flicker Time Plot U Filter Stored data pattern 1 Stored data pattern 1	6.6000kV 60Hz U1 LINE-LINE for EN THD_F PF PLPst Ums 100V lamp MAX/MIN/AVE ALL DATA 10minutes 1.00 ON
				OK)	

Example: Hioki 3197 Settings Window



Printing Measurement Data

Each display screen can be printed out. In addition, all open Time Plot windows can be printed together on one page.

Click the 🖨 (Print The Print Setup dialog be	:) button or select File – Print from the menu bar. ox opens.
Select the items you	need to print, and click the Print button.
 To print a logo or comination Select the logo or text to Unselected: The field HIOKI Logo: Select and If no file name is a printed. Text: The field will core 	nent in the Logo field (p. 25)b be printed.will be blank.n image file to print.selected, the HIOKI logo isntain your entered text.
Select to include maximum minimum and average va ues and channel informa-	Print Setup Image: Constraint of the set
tion in the printout.	✓ Print related markers at the same time Page Setup

Printout Example

Sample of an Event Waveform Printout

Paper setting: A4

Printing orientation: Landscape



Arranging Windows (Window Layout)

All currently open windows can be displayed by arranging the application's windows.

Click the 📘 (Tile) button or select Window – Tile from the menu bar.


Copying a Display Image to the Clipboard

Any image data can be copied to the clipboard and then pasted into an application such as Microsoft Word and Excel.

You can also copy and paste measurement values displayed in the A/B cursor dialog (p. 22).

If copying the DMN	l or Harn	nonic List to	Microsof	t Word or E	xcel, select the	range to co
	DMM [N	o.1 09/03 10:18:53.183	Ext (Stop)]			
	POWER	VOLTAGE	0	JRRENT		
	Freq	59.959 Hz				
	P1	8.601kW U1	6.553kV [1	1.5385 4		
	P2	7.836kW/ U2	6.522kV 12	1.3779.4	v	
	Psum	16.44kW U4	0.000kV 14	0.0000 4	v	
	<u>S1</u>	10.082kVA THD-U1	1.43 % TI	HD-I1 7.22 %	:	
	<u>S2</u>	8.987kVA THD-U2	0.96 % TI	HD-12 4.60 %		
	Ssum	16.51kVA THD-U4	% []	HD-14 X	<u> </u>	
	<u>U1</u>	5.260kvar Upk+1	9.082kV Ip	k+1 2.325 A		
	Q	- 4.399kvar Upk+2	9.192KV Ip	K+2 2.028 A		
	Usum DC1	0.85Kvar Upk+4	0.021KV Ip	K+4 U.U18 A		
	PEI	0.8531 Upk-1	- 9.078KV Tp	K-1 - 2.327 A		

Click the 🗎 (Copy) button or select Edit – Copy from the menu bar.

Paste the copied image into your destination program.

An example of five windows pasted into Microsoft Word



Generating Reports

Reports are generated from loaded measurement data, and can be printed out or saved as rich text format (.rtf) files.

Rich text format files can be loaded and edited in application programs such as Wordpad (supplied with Windows), or Microsoft Word.

Reports can be generated by three methods.

Report Generation Method	Details
Generate report contents automatically (Auto)	Report contents are generated without selecting output items. Items that can be output with auto report generation are limited.
Generate report with specified contents (Custom Settings)*	Report contents are generated by selecting output items. Note that for transient waveforms, the Transient Waveform selection is available only when Worst Case is selected.
Generate report with specified detailed con- tents (Detailed Settings)*	Report contents are generated from selected details of each output item and channel.

* Report generation settings can be saved and reloaded as settings files.

See "Report Output Items" (p. 32) for the items available for output in reports.

Confirm the span of data to be used in generating the report.

When the report wizard starts, the measurement data span is determined automatically from the current display state and position of the cursors in the window.

Set the A/B cursor locations if you want the report to specify a particular waveform span.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

If the A/B cursors are not enabled, the report is automatically generated using all loaded measurement data.



Click the image (Report Wizard) button or select File – Report Wizard from the menu bar. The Report Wizard – Start Page dialog box opens.

The Report Wizard cannot be started unless a window is already open.

Make settings in the Start Page dialog box.

- 1. Select a report generation method.
- 2. Set the starting and ending times of the data span to be reported.
- (These are automatically set to match the loaded data when the Report Wizard starts, but you can change them here.)
- 3. If report output is to include a demand graph, set the demand time span here.
- 4. Make settings for printing as occasion demands.
- (Comments and other information can printed in the Logo, Time and Comment fields, shown below.) 5. Click Next.
 - If Auto is selected: The Report Wizard Last Page dialog box opens.

If Custom Settings is selected: The Report Wizard – Individual Setting Page dialog box opens.(p. 30) If Detailed Settings is selected: The Report Wizard – Detailed Setting Page dialog box opens.(p. 31)



LUNA

CH2 AVE

amaddin muli anna ann

U[V] CH2

In the Last Page dialog, select whether to save or print the report.

Prints a report. Opens the Print dialog for you to make printer settings and print.	Report Wizard - Last Page X Specily Report Output Folder:	Preview Displays a preview of print- out contents before printing.
Saves a report to a rich text format file. Opens the Save RTF File dia- log where you can specify the save destination and name.	Outputs report to pinter. Save Outputs RTF-formatted report to file. End End Report Wizard < Back	Displays the Print dialog. Printer and paper selections can be made here.

Selecting Custom Settings

Make settings in the Individual Setting Page dialog box.

- Select those items to be output in the report. Note that Transient Waveform can be selected only when Worst Case is selected.
- Click Next. The Report Wizard – Last Page dialog box opens.

Dialog Example for Hioki 3196

TIME PLOT	EN50160
	C Overview
	📙 🖂 Signaling
_ THD	F Harmonic
🗆 U-THD 🗖 I-THD	Measurement Result Classification
List of All Events Details	Report I Vinced Setting File
All Events Waveforms	Report Wizard Setting File
Setting List	Load

Settings can be saved and reloaded later.

For your convenience, you can save your report selections as a Report Wizard Settings file that you can simply reload whenever you want to create another report with the same settings.

The Report Wizard Settings file contains all custom and detailed report output settings.

Printout Example: (p. 34)

Selecting Detailed Settings

Make settings in the Detail Setting Page dialog box.

- 1. Select those items to be output in the report.
- 2. Click Next.
 - The pages of displayed setting items depend on the loaded measurement data.

3196		3197	
Page	Setting Items	Page	Setting Items
1/4	Voltage Fluctuations, RMS Fluctuations	1/2	Voltage Fluctuations, RMS Fluctuations
2/4	Harmonic Fluctuations	2/2	Demand, Integrated Power
3/4	Interharmonic Fluctuations		
4/4	IEC Flicker, Demand, Integrated Power]	

3. Click Next.

The Report Wizard – Last Page dialog box opens.(p. 30)

Example: Voltage and RMS fluctuations in the Hioki 3196 dialog (page 1/4)

R	leport Wizard - Detailed Setting	Page 1 Select
	Report Output Parameters	1/4 page
	VOLTAGE	/ Reference Line HIGH CH1 CH2 CH3 CH4 sum Single ▲
Select graph p	lotting of thresholds	Graph plotting methods are selectable:
and reference	traces.	0.000 • Single
	I peak+ □ 0.0000 I peak- □ 0.0000 U ave □ 0.0000 I ave □ 0.0000 P □ 0.0000 Q □ 0.0000 PF □ 0.0000 KF □ 0.0000 Load [hreshold Values] Color Sc	All channels are plotted on one graph, and output on one page. Division Doco Channel sections are arranged and output on one page. Separate Each channel is plotted on a separate graph, and output as one graph per page. Cooo Cooo Cooo Cooo Cooo Cooo Cooo C
Loads the settings (SE ⁻	T) file after which	Sottings can be caved and releaded later
threshold data can be	entered as the	Settings can be saved and reloaded later.
reference line value		tions as a Report Wizard Settings file that you can sim-
		ply reload whenever you want to create another report with the same settings.
Report output graph of	olors can be selected.	. The Report Wizard Settings file contains all custom
The Color Setting dial	log box opens.	and detailed report output settings.
Graph colors set here put in reports.	are applied only to gra	aphs out-

Printout Example: (p. 34)

Report Output Items

- *1. Report output items are fixed for Auto report generation, but are selectable for Custom Settings or Detailed Settings report generation.
- *2. Transient Waveform can be selected only when Worst Case is selected.
- *3. Output for each channel can be set independently.

•: Can be output, ×: Cannot be output

Depart Quitaut Itam	3196		3197 '			Output Contents	
	Auto	Custom	Detailed	Auto	Custom	Detailed	Culput Contents
RMS Voltage Fluctuation Graph	●	•	●*3	●	•	●*3	Outputs a graph of rms voltage fluctuation that can be displayed in a Time Plot window.
RMS Current Fluctuation Graph	×	•	●*3	×	•	●*3	Outputs a graph of rms current fluctuation that can be displayed in a Time Plot window.
Voltage Fluctuation, RMS Fluctuation, Energy Consumption Graph, Demand Graph	×	×	●*3	×	×	●*3	Outputs a graph of Energy Consumption and de- mand that can be displayed in a Time Plot window.
Harmonic Fluctuations, Inter-harmonic Fluctuations, Flicker Graph	×	×	●*3				Outputs a graph of Flicker that can be displayed in a Time Plot window.
Voltage Total Harmonic Distortion Level Graph	•	٠	●*3	•	•	●*3	Outputs a graph of voltage total harmonic distor- tion levels that can be displayed in a Time Plot win- dow.
Current Total Harmonic Distortion Level Graph	×	•	●*3				Outputs a graph of current total harmonic distor- tion levels that can be displayed in a Time Plot win- dow.
EN50160 Overview	•	•	×				Outputs the contents displayed in the EN50160 Overview window.
EN50160 Signaling	•	•	×				Outputs the contents displayed in the EN50160 Signaling window.
EN50160 Harmonics	×	•	Х				Outputs the contents displayed in the EN50160 Harmonics window.
EN50160 Measurement Result Classification	×	•	×				Outputs an EN50169 measurement result classification table.
Worst Case	•	٠	×	•	٠	×	Outputs the five worst-case values for each volt- age swell, dip, interruption and transient event within the reporting span. The worst-case values are maximum voltage swell, maximum continuous voltage swell duration, minimum voltage dip, maximum continuous volt- age dip duration, maximum continuous voltage in- terruption duration and maximum transient value.
Transient Waveform *2	×	•	×				Outputs the worst-case transient waveform.
Maximum/ Minimum List	•	•	×	•	•	×	Outputs a list of voltage fluctuations (each channel separately), rms fluctuations (voltage and current on each channel separately), frequency, and max- imum and minimum values of active, reactive and apparent power within the reporting span.
Detailed List of All Events	●	•	×	●	•	×	Outputs a list of all events and event details. The order of the output list can be set to either chronological or priority sequence in the Event List window.
All Event Waveforms	•	•	×	٠	•	×	Outputs all event waveforms.
Settings List	×	•	×	×	•	×	Outputs a list of settings for the currently loaded data. These are the settings displayed in the Settings window when you select View – SYSTEM from the menu bar.

Report Printout Example

Auto Settings







			List of Max/Mi	n Values	2003/10/27 C:VHICK/3196/Build
9624-50 PQA-HIVIEW PRO		EW PRO	Measurement from a H	Wiring : 3P3W3M, Frequency : 60 Nominal Voltage : line to line 6.6K	
2003/08/05 12:00:00 - 2003/08/10 12:		003/08/10 12:00	0:00		
VOLTAGE	time URe	ference 6 600	0404		
U	CH	MINEVI	eufel	MAXIVI	
	CH1	5.687k	2003/08/06 16:30:00	6.828k	2003/08/06 17:50:00
	CH2 CH2	4.844k	2003/08/05 19:30:00	6.774k	2003/08/06 17:50:00
RMS	-				
U	CHI	min(v)	2002/04/04 17:50:00	MUCK[V]	200203-02406-17-60-00
	CH2	5.9978	2003/06/06 17:50:00	0.7664	2003/05/06 17:50:00
	CH3	6.038k	2003/08/06 17:50:00	6.7998	2003/05/06 17 50:00
	CH4	0.000k	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.000k	2003/06/05 12:00:00
	CH	MINIAT		MAXIAI	
	CH1	0.000	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.000	2003/08/05 12:00:00
	CH2	0.000	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.000	2003/08/05 12:00:00
	CH3	0.000	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.063	2003/08/07 22:30:00
	CH4	0.000	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.000	2003/08/05 12:00:00
Freq		MIN[Hz]		MAX[Hz]	
		59.838	2003/08/10 08:30:00	00.166	2003/06/08 23:50:00
POWER					
P	CH	MINEWS		[W]XAM	
	CH1	0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00
	CH2	0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00
	Sum Sum	0.000k	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.000M	2003/08/05 12:00:00
3	CH	MIN[VA]	2002/02/05 12:00:00	MAX[VA]	2002202405 12:02:02
	CHZ	0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.00%	2003/05/05 12:00:00
	CH3	0.008	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.32k	2003/03/07 22 30:00
	sum	0.0000M	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.0003M	2003/08/07 22 30:00
9	CH	MIN(var)		MAX[var]	
	CH1	- 0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00
	CH2	- 0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00	0.00k	2003/08/05 12:00:00
	CHG	- 0.31k	2003/08/09 19:50:00	0.32k	2003/08/07 22:30:00
	sum	-0.0003M	2000/06/09 19:50:00	0.0003M	2003/06/07 22:30:00



Generating Reports

Custom Settings



Detailed Settings



Storing Measurement Data in a CSV File

Measurement data (in binary format) can be converted to CSV format. Data converted to CSV format can be used in spreadsheet programs such as Excel. See: "Making Use of CSV File Data (Practical Applications)" (p. 41)

The format of CSV format files is the same for both the Hioki 3196 and 3197 Power Quality Analyzers. Refer to the "Appendix" (p. A1) and the instruments' instruction manuals for file format details.

Convertible Data

•:Convertible, -:Non-Convertible

Conversion Procedure	Window	Hioki 3196	Hioki 3197
	Time Plot	●	●
Convert time-series data to CSV format (for the	Flicker Graph	•	-
span demarcated by A/B cursors)	Voltage Fluctuation Event	•	•
(p. 35)	Inrush Current Graph	_	●
	Integrated Power	•	•
	Voltage/Current Waveform	•	•
Convert waveform data to CSV format	Voltage/Transient Waveform	•	_
(p. 38)	Voltage Event Waveform	●	●
	Current Event Waveform	•	•
Convert demand data to CSV format (p. 39)	Demand	•	•

Convert Time-Series Data to CSV Format

Activate the window with the data to be converted.

Demarcate the span for conversion

2	Click the

(A and B cursor) button, or select A and B cursor in the Window menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

The A/B cursors appear in the window, and a dialog box indicates values at the cursor positions. Displayed contents differ according to the type of data displayed.

Click the A or B cursor button in the dialog box to select the cursor to move.

		Click				
TIME PLOT -	R/IS L	J, CH1				×
A cursor A cursor	Calcul A a	ation betweer nd B cursor		Сору		
O D Cuisor		MIN	MAX	A	VE	
A 09/01 15:	55:00	6.469k	6.	535k	6.508k	
B 09/0310:	15:00	6.476k	6.	619k	6.546k	
1 18:	25:00	0.006k	0.	084k	0.038k	
MAX v	alues					
AVE v MIN v	alues alues					

The values at the cursor positions in the currently selected (active) window are displayed. Click the point where you want to move the cursor, or press the right- or left-arrow key on the keyboard to move the cursor.

Using the same procedure, move the other cursor as needed.



Select the items to be converted to CSV format

5 From the File menu, select Save the active data as a CSV file.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

The Select Data for CSV Conversion dialog box opens. Displayed contents differ according to the type of data displayed. 6 Select the check boxes of the items to be converted to CSV format.

> বিবেবৰ বিবের

> > ım Order

Select Order Numb All Orders

angle iU

Select M

1 -

OK Cancel

The number of selected measurement items displayed at the upper right of the Select Data for CSV Conver-

Microsoft Excel is unable to load more than 256 items

Example

Select Data for CSV C

TIME PLOT BMS

Freq

U peak+ U peak-I

l peak+ I peak-

U ave I ave P

Q PF KF U-THD I-THD U-iTHD I-iTHD all -

TIME PLOT VOLTAGE

CH1 CH2 CH3

CH2

य य य य य य य य य न न न य य य .

CH3 CH4

DDDDDDDLLLLLLL

sion dialog cannot exceed 256.

in one CSV format data file.

sum

र र र र र र र र र र र र र र ह ह <u>न</u>

Time Plot Window Example

Shows the number of currently selected measurement items (up to 256 items) Voltage Event Fluctuation Window

00

ब ब न न ब Г

CH1 CH2 CH3 CH4

Only Odd Order

all -

MIN/MAX/AVE

Example



Integrated Power Window Example

elect Data for CSV Conversion		×
- Integrated power value	4	terns
Integrated power value Maximum integrated power value	sum V	
<u>0</u> K	Cancel	

IEC Flicker Window Example

- IEC Flicker					8	Iten
Pst	CH1	CH2	CH3]		
Plt	•		N			
		ОК	Car	ncel		

Select Data for CS¥ Conversion

Inrush Current Window Example

Select Data for C	V Conversion	×
- Inrush Current	1	Items
	1 CH2 CH3	
[OK Cancel	

Click the **OK** button.

The Save As dialog box opens.

Select the save destination and enter the name of the file to save. 8

Save As 21 Save in: 🕒 My Documents 💽 🖛 🗈 📸 🖽	1 Select
e My Music My Pictures	
	2
Z Enter	
File name: PQAD ata Save	
Save as type: CSV file (".csv)	

Converting Waveform Data to CSV Format



Open the window with the waveform to be converted.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

To convert an event waveform

Make the Event Waveform window active, and select **Save the active data as a CSV file –** Event waveform data from the **File** menu.

To convert transient waveform data (Hioki 3196 only)

Make the Voltage/Transient Waveform window active, and select **Save the active data as a CSV file – Event transient waveform data** from the **File** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The Select Data for CSV Conversion dialog box opens.

Select the check boxes of the items to be converted to CSV format.

Example

Shows the number of currently selected measurement items

Event Waveform Example	

Select Data	for CSV C	onversior	n		×
- EVENT W	aveform-				8 Items
	CH1	CH2	CH3	CH4	
U				$\mathbf{\overline{v}}$	
			◄		
		<u>0</u> K	Can	cel	

Select Data	for CSV C	onversior	ı		×
- EVENT Tr	ansient Wa	veform			3 Items
	CH1	CH2	СНЗ	CH4	
			·		
		<u>0</u> K	Can	el	

Transient Waveform Example



Click the OK button.

The Save As dialog box opens.

Select the save destination and enter the name of the file to save.





Before Converting Harmonic Voltage Measurement Data (EN50160 Mode) to CSV Format (Hioki 3196 only)

For EN50160 mode measurements with the Hioki 3196, harmonic voltage (as opposed to inter-harmonic voltage) content is recorded as a percentage (of Uref) relative to the nominal voltage. This harmonic voltage can be converted from percentage of the nominal voltage (% of Uref) to percentage of the fundamental waveform voltage (% of Ufnd) and saved in CSV format.

Switch to EN50160 mode.

See: "Switching Modes" (p. 55)



The Convert harmonic % to CSV dialog box opens.

Select the check box, and click the OK button.



Making Use of CSV File Data (Practical Applications)

This section describes the procedure to create a graph with Microsoft Excel using a converted CSV file. This example uses Microsoft Excel 2000.

Open the converted CSV file with Excel.

1

2

Either double click the converted CSV file, or click File - Open in Excel and select the CSV file. The file contents appear.

Convert measurement data to display as normal numerical values.

Click the upper left cell of the measurement data, then while holding the Shift key on the keyboard, click the lower right cell of the measurement data to select it. Set the format of the selected cells to Number display.

N N	licrosoft E	xcel - Air	Con									
:剛	<u>Eile E</u> dit	View I	nsert	Format	Tools	Data	Window	Help	Type a (uestion for h	elp 🖌 💶	đΧ
:	Ari	al		- 10						i≢∣	👌 - 🛕	- 2
_	C2	•	fx.	211.4			1 C	lick				
	A	В		С			_			Н	1	
1	Date	Time			1 0							TH
2	8/4/2001	0:09:1	2.1	11E+02	: I0E+	32						
3	8/4/2001	0:10:1			10E+	32						
4	8/4/2001	0:11:1	5 2.	11E+02	2.10E+	32						
5	8/4/2001	0:12:1	5 2.	12E+02	2.10E+	32						
6	8/4/2001	0:13:1	5 2.	12E+02	2.11E+	32						
7	8/4/2001	0:14:1	5 2.	12E+02	2.11E+	32						
8	8/4/2001	0:15:1	5 2.1	12E+02	2.10E+	32						
9	8/4/2001	0:16:1	5 2.1	13E+02	2.12E+	32						
10	8/4/2001	0:17:1	5 2.1	13E+02	2.12E+	32						
11	8/4/2001	0:18:1	5 2.	13E+02	2.12E+	32						
12	8/4/2001	0:19:1	5 2.	13E+02	2.12E+	02						
13	8/4/2001	0:20:1	5 2.	13E+02	2.12E+	02						
14	8/4/2001	0:21:1	5 2.	14E+02	2.13E+	32						
15	8/4/2001	0:22:1	5 2.1	14E+02	2.13E+	32						
16	8/4/2001	0:23:1	5 2.1	13E+02	2.12E+	32						
17	8/4/2001	0:24:1	5 2.	13E+02	2.12E+	32						
18	8/4/2001	0:25:1	5 2.	12E+02	2.12E+	02						
19	8/4/2001	0:26:1	5 2.	13E+02	2.12E+	02						
20	8/4/2001	0:27:1	5 2.1	13E+02	2.11E+	32						
21	8/4/2001	0:28:1	5 2.1	13E+02	2.11E+	32						
22	8/4/2001	0:29:1	5 2.	12E+02	2.11E+	32						
23	8/4/2001	0:30:1	5 2.	12E+02	2.11E+	32						
24	8/4/2001	0:31:1	5 2.	12E+02	2.11E+	32						
- 0.F	> H Air	con 2	r	105.00	0.405.0			<				>
Read	ly .)						Trad		NUM].;

	crosoft b	xcel -	AIICO	n													<u>ک</u> ا
: M	<u>File E</u> dit	⊻iew	Inser	t F <u>o</u> rmat	Tools	Dat	a	Mindov	v <u>H</u> e	lp –	T)	/pe a q	uesti	on for h	elp	6	P >
	🚆 Ar	ial		- 10	- B	I	U		83		\$	%	運	-	<u>&</u>	• <u>A</u> •	
	C2	-	ß	211.4													
	A		B	С	D			E		F		G		Н		1	1
1419	8/4/200	1 23:	46:15	2.13E+02	2.11E	+02											1
1420	8/4/200	1 23:	47:15	2.13E+02	2.12E	+02											
1421	8/4/200	1 23:	48:15	2.13E+02	2.12E	+02											
1422	8/4/200	1 23:	49:15	2.13E+02	2.12E	+02											
1423	8/4/200	1 23:	50:15	2.13E+02	2.10E	+02											
1424	8/4/200	1 23:	51:15	2.11E+02	2.09E	+02											
1425	8/4/200	1 23:	52:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1426	8/4/200	1 23:	53:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1427	8/4/200	1 23:	54:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1428	8/4/200	1 23:	55:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1429	8/4/200	1 23:	56:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1430	8/4/200	1 23:	57:15	2.11E+02	2.09E	+02											
1431	8/4/200	1 23:	58:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1432	8/4/200	1 23:	59:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1433	8/5/200	1 0:	00:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1434	8/5/200	1 0:	01:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
1435	8/5/200	1 0:	02:15	2.11E+02	2.10E	+02											
4.490	0/5/000	1 0	09-45	3.445.03	3 105	-02											
		CI	ICK	whil	e n	0	O	ШQ	Jτr	ie	31	Ш	- K	œy			
																-	
1440	8/5/200	1 0:	07:15	2.12E+02	2. 1E	+02											
1441	8/5/200	1 0:	08:15	2.12E+C	-												
1442	8/5/200	1 0:	09:15	2.12E+C	2.11E	+02	_										
14 4	► H \Ai	rĊon/		_			•			٤]						>	Ú
Deed.								9	m=6.1	3E+05				NUM			

							3	Cli	ck		Form	at – C	ells
	🛯 M	icrosoft Ex	cel - AirC	on,			-						
	:	<u>File E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew <u>I</u> ns	ert	For	mat	ools	<u>D</u> ata	<u>W</u> indo	w	Help	Type a qi	
	:	🚆 🕴 Aria	I			C <u>e</u> lls			Ctrl+1		= #) 70	- Select (
		C2	•	fx	1	<u>R</u> ow				۲			The For
		A	В			⊆olu	nn			۲	F	G	annears
	1419	8/4/2001	23:46:15	5 2		Shee	ł						appour
	1420	8/4/2001	23:47:15	5 2		5100				·	_		
	1421	8/4/2001	23:48:16	5 2		Auto	Format						
	1422	8/4/2001	23:49:16	5 2		Conc	litional	Formatt	ina				
	1423	8/4/2001	23:50:16	5 2									
	1424	8/4/2001	23:51:1	5 2		Style							
	1425	8/4/2001	23:52:16	5 2	.11E	+02	2.10E	+02					
ĺ	1426	8/4/2001	23:53:16	5 2	.11E	+02	2.10E	+02					
ĺ	1427	8/4/2001	23:54:16	5 2	.11E	+02	2.10E	+02					
l	1428	8/4/2001	23-55-14	512	11F	+02	2 10E	+02					

Cell in the Format menu. rmat Cells dialog box s.



3 Select the range you want to graph.

Click the upper left cell of the measurement data, then while holding the Shift key on the keyboard, click the lower right cell of the desired measurement data to select the range.

N	licrosoft I	ixcel - /	lirCo	1										וכ	×
:0)	Eile Edit	View	Inser	t Formal	Tools	<u>D</u> ata	Window	Help		Type a q	juestion f	or help		ð	×
8 🗖	🙄 E Ar	ial					- I-			\$ %	建口口	- 3	- A	÷	
	B1	-	6	T/		CII	СК			,	- 10		-	_	•
			/*	6	D		F	F		G	н		1		_
1	Date	Time	1	nax1	Umin1		-			0				+	^
2	8/4/20	11110		211.40	210	17								-	
3	8/4/2001	0:10):15	211.27	210	30									
4	8/4/2001	0:11	:15	211.36	210	39									
5	8/4/2001	0:12	2:15	211.56	210.	35									
6	8/4/2001	0:13	3:15	211.60	210.	77									
7	8/4/2001	0:14	1:15	211.78	210.	76									
8	8/4/2001	0:16	5:15	212.23	210	46									
9	8/4/2001	0:18	5:15	212.85	211.	53									
10	8/4/2001	0:17	1:15	212.98	211.	85									
11	8/4/2001	0:18	3:15	213.02	212.	07									
12	8/4/2001	0:19	9:15	212.86	211.	95									
13	8/4/2001	0:20):15	213.39	212	25						_		_	
14	8/4/2001	0:21	:15	213.72	212.	60								_	
15	8/4/2001	0:22	2:16	214.19	212.	55			_			_		-	
10	8/4/2001	0:23	515	213.05	212.	06						_		-	
17	0/4/2001	0:24	1.10	212.73	211.	64 CC								-	
10	9/4/2001	0.20	5.45	212.45	211.	60								-	
20	0/4/2001	0.20	0.10	212.00	211.	47								-	
20	8/4/2001	0.27	215	212.00	211.	47			-			-		+	
22	8/4/2001	0.20	115	212.30	211.	20								-	
23	8/4/2001	0:30	1.15	212.08	211	28								-	
24	8/4/2001	0:31	:15	212.42	211.	16								+	-
or.	N N N	rcon 7	e	242.20		ee		1				1		1	ř
Dear	r rij\ai	rcon/						1			N	M	-		
r.eat	iy .										N				

	📧 M	licroso	oft E	cel -	AirCon										_		×
	:1	Elle	<u>E</u> dit	⊻jew	Insert	Format	Tools	<u>D</u> ata	Window	v <u>H</u> elp		Type a	questio	on for he	ip 💌	- 8	×
	:	2	Aria	al I		- 10	- B	I	u∣≣	= =		\$ %	谭	- 19	<u>گ</u> - رق	A -	2
	_	B1	_	•	fx	Time											-
		1	۹.	E	3	С	D		E	F		G		Н			-
	1419	8/4	2001	23:-	46:15	212.59	21	1.43									
	1420	8/4/	2001	23:-	47:15	212.67	21	1.71									
	1421	8/4	2001	23:-	48:15	212.65	21	1.82									
	1422	8/4	2001	23:	49:15	212.80	21	1.80									
	1423	8/4	2001	23:	50:15	212.80	210	3.20									
	1424	8/4	2001	23:	51:15	210.68	20	9.25									
	1425	8/4	2001	23:	52:15	210.71	20	9.79									
	1426	8/4/	2001	23:	53:15	210.89	210	0.01									
	1427	8/4	2001	23:	54:15	210.86	20	9.82									
	1428	8/4	2001	23:	55:15	210.98	210	D. 16									
	1429	8/4	2001	23:	56:15	210.93	20	9.71									
	1430	8/4	2001	23:	57:15	210.91	20	3.44									
	1431	8/4	2001	23:	58:15	211.05	210	0.23									
	1432	8/4	2001	23:	59:15	211.29	210	0.30									
	1433	8/5	2001	0:	30:15	211.42	210	0.41									
	1434	8/5	2001	0:1	01:15	211.38	20	9.90									-
ľ		_		211							_					•	-
			1	2110	CK	while	e no	old	ing	the	9.5	nin	i Ke	∍у		•	-
ī	1430	0/5/	2001	0.0	10.10	211.50		J.57		1	1		1		1		Ĩ
	1439	8/5	2001	0:	36:15	211.88	211	3.98									
	1440	8/5	2001	0:	37:15	211.95	21	1.13									1
	1441	8/5	2001	0:	38:15	212.1	-										
	1442	8/5	2001	0:	09:15	212.0	21	1.19									v
	14 4	н н	Air	Ċon/						<			ш			>	Ē
	Read	ly .							SU	m=6141	09.266	4		NUM			



5

Select Chart in the Insert menu.

The Chart Wizard starts.

					1.0	liek	Inse	ert			
💌 Mi	icrosoft Ex	cel 🚽	lirCo	un		IICK					X
:2)	<u>Eile E</u> dit	⊻iev	Ins	ert <u>o</u> rmat	<u>T</u> ools <u>D</u>	ata <u>W</u> indow	Help	Type a qu	estion for help	p 🔹 🗕 é	×
: 🖃	🚆 Aria	1		<u>R</u> ows		<u>u</u> ≣ :	= = ••	\$ %	崖 🖽 🗸 🗸	🕉 - <u>A</u> -	
	B1	•		⊆olumns							
	A	E		<u>W</u> orksheet		F	F	G	Н	I	
1419	8/4/2001	23:4	16	Chart	<		2 Clic	k	Ch	art –	
1420	8/4/2001	23:4		anarri				n			_
1421	8/4/2001	23:4	Ĵ.c	Eunction							_
1422	8/4/2001	23:4		Name	+						_
1423	8/4/2001	23:5		Distance		1					_
1424	8/4/2001	23:5		Picture	•	l					_
1425	8/4/2001	23:5	2	Hyperlink	Ctrl+K	1					_
1426	8/4/2001	23:5		*							_
1427	8/4/2001	23:5	4.10	210.00	209.0	2					_
1428	8/4/2001	23:5	55:15	210.98	210.16	6					_
142											

Select the Line for the Chart type, and click Next.

You can click Press and Hold to View Sample to see how the generated graph will look.



6 Click the Next button.

Refer to the Excel Help for the functions available in the window below.

Data Range Ser	ep 2 of 4 - Chart So	urce Data	
220.00 215.00 205.00 200.00 195.00 190.00			mox1 min1
Data range:	등 축 형 호 향 등 축 축 축 AirConi\$8\$1:\$D\$1442 Rows	11202 1657: 2005: 2005: 2005: 2005: 2005: 2005:	
۲	Coļumns	Novt	Click
		Next	

Customize your graph as occasion demands, and click the Finish button.

Refer to the Excel Help for the functions available in the window below. In this example, a title and labels for the X and Y axes are added.

1 Enter	Chart Wizard - Step 3 of 4 - Chart Options	
	Cancel Cancel Einish	2 Click

Save your result as a file or copy to Microsoft Word or Excel.

Example edited with Microsoft Word.

8



2

Downloading Measurement Data from the Power Quality Analyzer (LAN Download Function) (Hioki 3196 only)

You can download data from the Hioki 3196's internal memory and data files from its PC Card by connecting it to the computer via LAN.

Refer to Section 11.2, "Control and Monitoring Using the LAN Interface" in the Hioki 3196 Power Quality Analyzer Detailed Instruction Manual for the LAN settings.

Before Connecting the Hioki 3196 to the LAN

NOTE Confirm that the 3196 SETTING or ANALYZING display is selected. Making connections and downloading are not possible when the 3196 display is WAITING (awaiting measurement) or RECORDING.

Click the [a] (Download) button or select File – Download from the menu bar.

The Download dialog box opens.



Enter the IP address of the Hioki 3196 to be connected.

A history is retained of the last ten connected IP addresses. Click 💌 to display this history.



45

Click the 🚺 (Update) button.

Connection is established to the Hioki 3196, and the data file list is refreshed. When refreshing is complete, the Hioki 3196 internal memory and PC Card data files are displayed in the data file list.

Select a data file to download from the data file list.

Download				X
Address http:// 192	2.168.0.1		• 😣	2
No files found in interna	al memory.			
[N	Circ.	D-6		
🛃 Int_mem				
🚞 T 31 02 00 3	5KB	03/10/2	0 19:07	
🚞 T 31 02 00 2	5KB	03/10/2	0 19:07	
🚞 T 31 0 2 0 0 1	5KB	03/10/2	0 19:07	
🚞 B3032702	368KB	03/03/2	7 11:00	
🚞 B3032601	178KB	03/03/2	6 20:09	
B3012901	2708KB	03/10/2	0 18:58	
H3196005.BMP	70KB	01/06/1	6 02:59	
H3196004.BMP	69KB	01/06/1	6 02:59	
H3196003.BMP	69KB	01/06/1	6 02:59	
H3196002.BMP	46KB	03/10/2	0 19:06	-
	Download 8	<u>k O</u> pen	<u>D</u> ownloa	id
			Cance	
1 object(s) selected	2.7	1MB		



6

3

Δ

Click the **Download** button.

The Choose dialog box opens.

Select the save destination and, if everything is ready, start downloading.

After downloading, to open a data file with the PQA-HiView Pro, select a folder with "B" appended to the front.

Saving and Loading Settings Files

About Settings Files

The PQA-HiView Pro can save and reload the following settings as a single settings file. After saving a settings file, you can reload it to view data or create reports using the same settings as when the file was saved. The types of settings files that can be saved are different for the Hioki 3196 and 3197.

The procedure described here is for saving and loading compound files. Refer to the indicated reference pages for the procedures to save and load discrete (non-compound) files.

Settings File	File Ex- tension	File Contents	3196	3197	Refer- ence
Report Wizard Settings File	.RPF	(Report Wizard Window) Report output item settings can be saved.	•	•	(p. 28)
User-Defined Curve Settings File	.UCV	(Curve Editing Window) Upper and lower limit curves can be edited and saved.	•	-	(p. 78)
Measurement Result Classification Settings File	.ESP	(EN50160 Measurement Result Classification Editor Window) Different classification tables for EN50160 measurement results can be ed- ited and saved.	•	_	(p. 88)
Compound File (This file type com- bines all three of the above file types, although the Hioki 3197 supports only the Report Wizard Settings File data.)	.QAP	All data defined for the User-Defined Curve file, Measurement Result Classification file and Report Wizard Settings file are stored to- gether.	•	_	(p. 47)

Specify the Save Destination for the Settings File Beforehand

The default save destination is the My Documents folder.

By specifying another save destination before saving the settings file, all settings files will be saved to the new destination in the future.



The Open dialog box opens.

Open	<u>? ×</u>
Select the folder to save various setting data.	
🖃 🞯 Desktop	▲
🕞 📋 My Documents	
🖨 🚽 😼 My Computer	
🕀 🚜 3½ Floppy (A:)	
🖻 🖘 Local Disk (C:)	
Documents and Settings	
🕀 🛅 HIOKI	
🕀 🦳 Program Files	
🗄 🦳 WINDOWS	
🕀 🖘 Local Disk (D:)	
😥 🥝 VOL_200610101625 (E:)	-
	_
	. 1
	:ei

2 Select the folder in which to save settings files, and click the **OK** button.

Saving a Compound File

The data for each type of settings file is combined and stored in a single file.





Select the name of the file to open in the dialog, and click Open.

Open

Cancel

The settings loaded from the file are applied to each setting item.

Analyzing Measurement Data from the Hioki 3196 Chapter 4

Hioki 3196 Measurement Data Window Layout

Window Display

The Measurement Data window appears when data is loaded.



Any window can be displayed using the menu or tool bar. A window can also be changed by right clicking within it and selecting another window to display from the pop-up menu.

See: "Menu Bar Operations" (p. 50), "Tool Bar Operations" (p. 53) "Changing Windows" (p. 17)

Two display modes are available for analyzing Hioki 3196 measurement data: normal mode and EN50160 display mode.

See: "Switching Modes" (p. 55)

Menu Bar Operations

Clicking a menu item displays one of the pull-down menus shown below. Items not available for the current window are grayed out.



1 File

Click File and select from the pull-down menu.

		The same operations are available on the tool b	ar (p. 53).
File		↓	
Open Ctrl+O Recent folder	Open	Opens a file.	(p. 14)
Close	Recent folder	Displays recently used folders.	
Report Wizard Ctrl+W Print Ctrl+P Save the active data as a CSV file	Download	Downloads data from internal memory of the 3196 or PC card via LAN.	(p. 44)
Open Integrated Files Ctrl+R Save Integrated Files	Close	Closes the currently active window.	
Currently-used Integrated Files	Report Wizard	Sets the conditions for creating a report.	(p. 28)
LAN	Print	Prints the currently active window.	(p. 24)
	Save the active data as a CSV file	Saves the loaded data as a CSV format file.	(p. 35)
	Open Integrated Files	Loads a settings file for the PQA-HiView Pro.	(p. 47)
	Save Integrated Files	Saves a setting file for the 9624-50.	(p. 47)
	Currently-used Integrat- ed Files	Displays recently used compound files.	
	Exit	Closes the PQA-HiView Pro program.	(p. 12)

2 Edit

Click Edit and select from the pull-down menu.

......



3 View

Click **View** and select the window or items to display from the pull-down menu.

The same operations are available on the tool bar (p. 53).

View Tool Bar		↓		
EVENT LIST Window EVENT DATA Window ITIC Screen	Tool Bar		Shows or hides the standard tool bar (top) and window tool bar (left).	
Open new TIME PLOT Window Delta V10 Flicker Window IEC Flicker Window Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph Integrated Power Window	EVENT LIST Window		Opens the event list window. You can re-order the displayed list by selecting Sort by Time (-), Sort by Time (+) or Sort by Priority.	(p. 62)
ENSO160 Ctrl+E SYSTEM	EVENT DATA Window		Opens the event details window. You can select the following window data types: • Event Details Window • Voltage/Current Waveform Window • Voltage/Transient Waveform Window • Voltage Waveform Window • Current Waveform Window • Vector Window • DMM Window • Harmonic Bar Graph Window • Harmonic List Window	(p. 63)
	ITIC Window	Þ	Opens the ITIC Window. An EVT file containing voltage swell, dip or in- terruption data must be loaded in order to dis- play this window.	(p. 76)
	Open new TIME PLOT Window	M	Opens up to four new TIME PLOT windows. You can select the following window data types: • RMS Window • Voltage Window • Harmonics Window • Interharmonics Window	(p. 56)
	Delta V10 Flicker Window	⊿₩o	Opens the Delta V10 Flicker Window. (An FLC file of Delta V10 flicker data must be loaded in order to display this window)	(p. 80)
	IEC Flicker Window	Flic	Opens the IEC Flicker Window. (An FLC file of IEC flicker data must be loaded in order to display this window)	(p. 81)
	Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph	ť	Opens the Voltage Fluctuation Event Window. (A WDU file of the voltage fluctuation event graph for the selected event must be loaded in order to display this window)	(p. 73)
	Integrated Power Window	₩h	The Energy Consumption opening dialog is dis- played, and after setting, the Integrated Power window appears.	(p. 74)
	Demand Window	Dem	The Demand opening dialog is displayed, and after setting, the Demand Window appears.	(p. 75)
	EN50160	EN	Switches between normal and EN50160 display modes.	(p. 55)
	SYSTEM		Displays the settings on the Hioki 3196.	(p. 82)

4 Window

Click **Window** and select from the pull-down menu. This menu includes the names of the currently displayed windows.

Normal display mode

The same operations are available on the tool bar (p. 53).

........................

Window		↓	
Tile A and B cursor	Tile	Arranges display of all open win-	(p. 26)
✓ 1 TIME PLOT - RMS U, CH1			
2 Event details [No.1 09/02 11:31:54.192 Ex 3 ITIC 4 EVENT LIST	A and B cursor	Select to demarcate a span or view values at cursor positions.	(p. 21)

EN50160 display mode

Window	
Tile	Ctrl+T
✓ 1 Signaling	
2 Measurement Result Classification	n
3 Harmonic	
4 Overview	

5 EVENT LIST/ EVENT DATA/ TIME PLOT/ ITIC

The menu displayed depends on the selected window.

Click **EVENT LIST, EVENT DATA**, **TIME PLOT** or **ITIC** to select a window from the corresponding pull-down menu.

You can also right click and select a window to switch to from the pop-up menu.

EVENT LIST			EVENT DATA		
 ✓ Sort by <u>Time</u> (-) Sort by Time (+) 	Sort by Time (-)		Event details	Event details	(p. 64)
Sort by <u>P</u> riority	Sort by Time (+)	(p. 62)	VOLTAGE/CORRENT	VOLTAGE/CURRENT	(p. 65)
	Sort by Priority		CURRENT	VOLTAGE/	(n. 66)
			VECTOR	TRANSIENT	(p. 00)
			HARMONICS BAR GRAPH	VOLTAGE	(p. 67)
Limit Value Curve	Limit Value Curve	(p. 76)	HARMONICS LIST	CURRENT	(p. 68)
				VECTOR	(p. 69)
				DMM	(p. 70)
TIME PLOT	240	(= 50)		HARMONICS BAR GRAPH	(p. 71)
VOLTAGE HARMONICS	RMS	(p. 58)		HARMONICS LIST	(p. 72)
INTERHARM	VOLTAGE	(p. 59)			, ,
	HARMONICS (Harmonic Fluctuations)	(p. 60)			
	INTERHARM (Inter-Harmonic Fluctua- tions)	(p. 61)			

6 Option

Click **Option** and select from the pull-down menu.

Option Change of Setting Data Storage Folder	Change of Setting Data Storage Folder	Select this to specify the save destination for settings files.	(p. 46)
Convert narmonic % to CSv	Convert harmonic % to CSV	Select this to convert measured harmonic volt- age values from percentage of the nominal voltage to percentage of the fundamental waveform voltage when saving data to CSV format. (EN50160 data only)	(p. 40)

7 Help

Click **Help** and select from the pull-down menu.

Help	
Version of 9624-50 PQA-HiVIEW PRO	Displays version information for the Hioki 9624-50 PQA-HiView Pro program.

Tool Bar Operations

Tool bar (standard)



1	🚰 Open	(p. 14)	6		Open Integrated file	(p. 47)
2	Download	(p. 44)	7	H	Save Integrated file	(p. 47)
3	Report Wizard	(p. 28)	8		Tile	(p. 26)
4	🞒 Print	(p. 24)	9	Å ₿	A and B cursors	(p. 21)
5	Сору	(p. 27)	10	EN	Switch to EN50160 Window	(p. 55)

Tool bar (window)

₩

1	1		Show/hide EVENT LIST Window	(p. 62)
2	2	붋	Show/hide EVENT DATA Window	(p. 63)
3	3	╞╤	Show/hide ITIC Window	(p. 76)
4	4	2	Open new TIME PLOT Window	(p. 56)
Ę	5	d¥lo	Open Delta V10 Flicker Window	(p. 80)
e	6	Flic	Open IEC Flicker Window	(p. 81)
7	7 [й	Open Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph	(p. 73)
8	В	₩h	Open Integrated Power Window	(p. 74)
ç	9	Dem	Open Demand Window	(p. 75)
1	0		Open EN50160 Overview Window	(p. 83)
1	1	.l.l.i	Open EN50160 Harmonic Window	(p. 85)
1	2		Open EN50160 Measurement Result Classification Window	(p. 87)
1	3	Sig	Open EN50160 Signaling Window	(p. 86)
1	4		View system settings	(p. 82)

Switching Modes

Two switchable display modes are provided for Hioki 3196 measurement data: Normal display mode and EN50160 display mode.

Window layouts are similar to the screens on the Hioki 3196 Power Quality Analyzer, for easy analysis.

The Normal display mode is initially enabled when data is loaded.

Click **I** to toggle between Normal and EN50160 display modes.

The **I** tool appears pressed when the EN50160 display mode is enabled.



Viewing a Time Series Graph

Data measured with the Hioki 3196 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as a time series graph (Time Plot window). The program's Time Plot windows correspond to each Time Plot screen on the Hioki 3196.

If the Hioki 3196 has a high-capacity PC Card installed when measuring, long-term recording data may be difficult to display on the instrument's screen (when "Memory full: LOOP" is selected on the SYSTEM – RECORDING screen).

This kind of long-term time plot data can be analyzed with the PQA-HiView Pro.

The following types of Time Plot windows can be displayed up to four windows at a time.

- RMS Window (p. 58)
- VOLTAGE Window (p. 59)
- HARMONICS Window (p. 60)
- INTERHARM (Interharmonics) Window (p. 61)

Opening and Switching Time Plot Windows

Load the measurement data. See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

To display a Time Plot window, the loaded data must include an ITV file.

Click the [M] (Open Time Plot Window) button or select View – Open new TIME PLOT window from the menu bar.

A Time Plot Window opens.

You can open up to four windows by clicking the button or selecting from the menu bar repeatedly.



Click an event marker to view an event phenomenon in the other windows.

See: "Viewing Event Phenomena" (p. 19)

Scrolls the window

Move a scroll box or click within the scroll bar. When scrolling horizontally, all open Time Plot windows scroll together.

[TIME PLOT]

Switching Windows

Δ

Activate the Time Plot window to be switched, and select the desired window to display from the **TIME PLOT** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

The windows available for selection depend on the data type that was selected on the SYSTEM – MAIN – RECORDING screen of the Hioki 3196.

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Viewing a Time Series Graph [TIME PLOT]



Changing Displayed Contents

When the RMS window is active, it's own tool bar is displayed. Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the RMS window's tool bar.



Viewing Voltage Fluctuations

[TIME PLOT – VOLTAGE]

Open a Time Plot window.

See: "Opening and Switching Time Plot Windows" (p. 56)

Activate the Time Plot window and select **VOLTAGE** from the **TIME PLOT** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The Voltage window opens.



Voltage fluctuation data consists of pairs of maximum and minimum values for every measurement interval. Therefore, expanding the horizontal scale reveals the data as a series of vertical lines between each pair of maximum and minimum values at each measurement interval. There is no horizontal line through the space between measurement intervals.

Changing Displayed Contents

When the Voltage window is active, it's own tool bar is displayed.

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Voltage window's tool bar.





Scrolls the window

Harmonic data that was recorded with the MAX/MIN/AVE recording data type setting consists of maximum, minimum and average values for every measurement interval. Therefore, expanding the horizontal scale reveals the data as a series of vertical lines between each pair of maximum and minimum values at each measurement interval. There is no horizontal line through the space between measurement intervals.

Settings that existed at the time of recording can be confirmed from the Settings window. (p. 82) Data from 400 Hz measurements can be analyzed up to the 10th harmonic order.

Changing Displayed Contents

When the Harmonics window is active, it's own tool bar is displayed. Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Harmonics window's tool bar.



Displayed Harmonic Orders

Up to six harmonic orders (from 1 to 50) can be selected for display together.

The vertical axis has a fixed logarithmic scale.

Viewing Inter-Harmonic Fluctuations

[TIME PLOT – INTERHARM]

Open a Time Plot window.

See: "Opening and Switching Time Plot Windows" (p. 56)

Activate the Time Plot window and select **INTERHARM** from the **TIME PLOT** menu. You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

The INTERHARM window opens.



Inter-harmonic data that was recorded with the MAX/MIN/AVE recording data type setting consists of maximum, minimum and average values for every measurement interval. Therefore, expanding the horizontal scale reveals the data as a series of vertical lines between each pair of maximum and minimum values at each measurement interval. There is no horizontal line through the space between measurement intervals. Settings that existed at the time of recording can be confirmed from the Settings window. (p. 82)

Changing Displayed Contents

When the Interharm window is active, it's own tool bar is displayed.

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Interharm window's tool bar.



The vertical axis has a fixed logarithmic scale.

Viewing Events as a List

Event occurrences within data measured with the Hioki 3196 can be displayed as a list (the Event List window).

The Event List window is equivalent to the EVENT – LIST screen on the Hioki 3196.

You can re-order the displayed list by selecting **Sort by Time (-)**, **Sort by Time (+)** or **Sort by Pri-ority**.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

To display the Event List window, the loaded data must include an EVT file.

Click the (Show/hide EVENT LIST window) button or select View – EVENT LIST Window from the menu bar.

The Event List window opens.



Click an event, or select using the up/down arrow keys on the keyboard to view the event phenomenon in other windows.

See: "Viewing Event Phenomena" (p. 19)

Indicates whether a graph of the event exists. WDU: Indicates that an voltage fluctuation event graph exists. (p. 73)

Re-Ordering the Display of Events

Make the Event List window active, and select **Sort by Time (–)**, **Sort by Time (+)** or **Sort by Priority** from the **EVENT LIST** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The list is re-ordered according to your selection. [EVENT LIST]
[EVENT DATA]

Viewing Event Measurement Data

Data measured with the Hioki 3196 upon the occurrence of an event can be displayed as a graph (Event Data window).

The Event Data window is equivalent to the VIEW screen displayed when you select an event in the Event List on the Hioki 3196 and press the ENTER key.

The Event Data window can be switched between the following nine types.

- Event details Window (p. 64)
- VOLTAGE/CURRENT Window (p. 65)
- VOLTAGE/TRANSIENT Window (p. 66)
- VOLTAGE Window (p. 67)
- CURRENT Window (p. 68)

- VECTOR Window (p. 69)
- DMM Window (p. 70)
- HARMONICS BAR GRAPH Window (p. 71)
- HARMONICS LIST Window (p. 72)

In this manual, the above windows are collectively called "Event Data windows".

Opening and Switching Event Data Windows

Load the measurement data. See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

Click the Click

The Event data window opens.



Click an event marker or an event in the Event List to display a graph of the event. **See:** "Viewing Event Phenomena" (p. 19)

Switching Windows

Activate the Event Data window and select the desired window from the **EVENT DATA** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

Viewing Event Measurement Data [EVENT DATA]

Viewing Event Details

Open the Event Data window.

See: "Opening and Switching Event Data Windows" (p. 63)

Activate the Event Data window and select Event details from the EVENT DATA menu. You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

The Event details window opens.

When you select an event in the Event List window, multiple event contents associated with that event occurrence are displayed.

Event details [No.12 03/12	11:34:30.744 Dip CH1 OUT]	
Date Time	Event Category	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.744	Dip CH1 OUT 0.20 V 00:00:26.051	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.744	Urms CH1 OUT 00:00:26.201	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.744	U-THD CH1 OUT 00:00:26.201	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.744	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.760	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.777	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.794	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.810	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.827	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.844	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.860	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.877	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.894	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.911	Wave CH1	
2002/03/12 11:34:30.927	Wave CH1	



Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Time and numerical values at A and B cursor locations





Differences between A and B data (B - A)

The time difference between cursors is calculated using internal data resolution of less than 0.001 seconds, but the last digit (0.001 s) may not be exact.

Viewing Voltage/Transient Waveforms

[VOLTAGE/TRANSIENT]



Y-axis scale of voltage waveform X-axis scale of waveform

X-axis scale of transient waveform

Y-axis scale of transient waveform

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)



Differences between A and B data (B - A)

Time data is 0 μ s at the left end of the transient data, and 4096 μ s at the right end.



Cursor B (Purple)



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Voltage window's tool bar.



Y-axis scale of voltage waveform X-axis scale of waveform



Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Viewing Event Measurement Data [EVENT DATA]

Viewing Current Waveforms

[CURRENT]



Open the Event Data window.

See: "Opening and Switching Event Data Windows" (p. 63)

Activate the Event Data window and select the **CURRENT** window from the **EVENT DATA** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The Current window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Current window's tool bar.



Y-axis scale of current waveform X-axis scale of waveform

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)



Up to 10 harmonic orders can be analyzed from 400 Hz measurements.

Calculated values of positive-, negative- and zerophase current

41.473 A 1.033 A 0.022 A

Current on each channel

Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Vector window's tool bar.

| 11 | 12 | 13 | 1 unt



Viewing Event Measurement Data [EVENT DATA]

Viewing the DMM Display

[DMM]

Open the Event Data window.

See: "Opening and Switching Event Data Windows" (p. 63)

Activate the Event Data window and select the DMM window from the EVENT DATA menu. You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

The DMM window opens.

DMM [No	DMM [No.6 08/08 08:34:11.359 I rms CH1 IN]							
POWER		VOLTAGE		CURRENT				
Freq	60.001 Hz							
P1	3.558kW	U1	202.98 V	11	41.365 A			
P2	3.715kW	U2	205.94 V	12	43.244 A			
P3	3.546kW	U3	202.42 V	13	42.001 A			
Psum	10.818kW	U4	0.00 V	14	0.000 A			
S1	4.815kVA	THD-U1	0.72 %	THD-I1	2.83 %			
S2	5.124kVA	THD-U2	0.88 %	THD-I2	2.06 %			
\$3	4.959kVA	THD-U3	0.85 %	THD-I3	2.41 %			
Ssum	14.898kVA	THD-U4	%	THD-I4	488.93 %			
Q1	3.244kvar	Upk+1	290.51 V	lpk+1	74.28 A			
Q2	3.530kvar	Upk+2	295.79 V	lpk+2	80.56 A			
Q3	3.467kvar	Upk+3	289.19 V	lpk+3	70.27 A			
Qsum	10.241kvar	Upk+4	0.95 V	lpk+4	0.17 A			
PF1	0.7389	Upk-1	-289.78 V	lpk-1	- 71.19 A			
PF2	0.7249	Upk-2	-295.43 V	lpk-2	- 73.94 A			
PF3	0.7150	Upk-3	-288.79 V	lpk-3	- 80.48 A			
PFsum	0.7262	Upk-4	+ 0.11 V	lpk-4	0.04 A			
		Uave	203.78 V	KF1	1.01			
		Uunb	1.13 %	KF2	1.00			
				KF3	1.01			
				KF4				
				lave	42.203 A			
				le melle	2 51 2			

Copying Selected Data to Another Application

Select the range to be copied with your mouse, then select **Edit – Copy** from the menu bar. As text data with tab separators, you can paste it directly into Microsoft Excel.

	-	VOLTAGE		CURRENT	
Frea	59.998 Hz			1	Í
FI	2.517kW	U1	202.63 V	11	25.729 A
P2	2.658kW	U2	205.22 V	12	27.632 A
P3	2.409kW	U3	201.63 V	13	25.582 A
Psum	7.584kW	U4	0.00 V	14	0.000 A
S1	2.987kVA	THD-U1	0.89 %	THD-I1	0.86 %
\$2	3.267kVA	THD-U2	1.12 %	THD-I2	1.21 %
\$3	3.008kVA	THD-U3	1.03 %	THD-I3	1.38 %
Ssum	9.261kVA	THD-U4	%	THD-14	%
Q1	1.608kvar	Upk+1	285.37 V	lpk+1	36.83 A
Q2	1.900kvar	Upk+2	288.64 V	lpk+2	39.47 A
Q3	1.801kvar	Upk+3	283.76 V	lpk+3	36.40 A
Qsum	5.308kvar	Upk+4	0.92 V	lpk+4	0.20 A
PF1	0.8428	Upk-1	-284.24 V	lpk-1	- 36.58 A
PF2	0.8136	Upk-2	-287.76 V	lpk-2	- 39.18 A
PF3	0.8009	Upk-3	-283.25 V	lpk-3	- 36.04 A
PFsum	0.8189	Upk-4	- 0.11 V	lpk-4	- 0.04 A
		Uave	203.16 V	KF1	1.00
		Uunb	1.10 %	KF2	1.01
				KF3	1.01
				KF4	
				lave	2010171
				lunb	5.01

Specified Range

Microsoft Excel - EVENT_dmm_copy												
9	<u>Eile E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew Ins	ert	Forma	t <u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> ata <u>W</u> indov	v <u>H</u> elp	0	T	ype a questio	n for help	•
:	📔 🖬 🛛	🔒 🗈 📲	5	- Σ	• 🔞 🚆	Arial		-	10 - B	ΙU∣≣		
	A1	-	f*	POWE	R							_
	A	В		С	D	E	F		G	Н		
1	POWER				VOLTAG	E			CURRENT			
2	Freq	6.00E+01	Hz									
3	P1	2.52E+03	W		U1	2.03E+02	V		11	2.57E+01	A	
4	P2	2.66E+03	W		U2	2.05E+02	V		12	2.76E+01	A	
5	P3	2.41E+03	W		U3	2.02E+02	\vee		13	2.56E+01	A	
6	Psum	7.58E+03	W		U4	0.00E+00	V		14	0.00E+00	A	
7	S1	2.99E+03	VA		THD-U1	8.90E-01	%		THD-I1	8.60E-01	%	
8	S2	3.27E+03	VA		THD-U2	1.12E+00	%		THD-I2	1.21E+00	%	
9	S3	3.01E+03	VA		THD-U3	1.03E+00	%		THD-I3	1.38E+00	%	
10	Ssum	9.26E+03	VA		THD-U4		%		THD-I4		%	
11	Q1	1.61E+03	var		Upk+1	2.85E+02	V		lpk+1	3.68E+01	A	
12	Q2	1.90E+03	var		Upk+2	2.89E+02	V		lpk+2	3.95E+01	A	
13	Q3	1.80E+03	var		Upk+3	2.84E+02	V		lpk+3	3.64E+01	A	
14	Qsum	5.31E+03	var		Upk+4	9.20E-01	V		lpk+4	2.00E-01	A	
15	PF1	8.43E-01			Upk-1	-2.84E+02	V		lpk-1	-3.66E+01	A	1
16	PF2	8.14E-01			Upk-2	-2.88E+02	V		lpk-2	-3.92E+01	A	1
17	PF3	8.01E-01			Upk-3	-2.83E+02	V		lpk-3	-3.60E+01	A	1
18	PFsum	8.19E-01			Upk-4	-1.10E-01	V		lpk-4	-4.00E-02	A	1
19					Uave	2.03E+02	V		KF1	1.00E+00		
20					Uunb	1.10E+00	%		KF2	1.01E+00		
21									KF3	1.01E+00		
22									KF4			
23									lave	2.63E+01	A	
24									lunb	5.01E+00	%	
25												1
26												
27												
28								1.				
• •	P N/E	reni_dmm	_cop	P Y /				<		ш		

Copied to Excel

Viewing Harmonics on a Bar Graph

[HARMONICS BAR GRAPH]

Open the Event Data window.

See: "Opening and Switching Event Data Windows" (p. 63)

Activate the Event Data window and select the **HARMONICS BAR GRAPH** window from the **EVENT DATA** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The Harmonics Bar Graph window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Harmonics Bar Graph window's tool bar.





Specified Range

1 69 (%)

Copied to Excel

NAMENT NAME

Viewing Voltage Fluctuation Details

[Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph]

Voltage fluctuation phenomena (swells, dips and interruptions) that occurred within data measured by the Hioki 3196 can be displayed graphically (in the Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window). This window is equivalent to the VOLTAGE – EVENT (TIME PLOT) screen on the Hioki 3196. A Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph can be displayed only when an Event file (WDU file) is loaded. Event files can be confirmed in the Event List (p. 62).

A Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph is a 10-second time series graph of rms voltage calculated over one half-cycle-shifted waveform.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

Click the (Open Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph) button or select View – Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph from the menu bar.

The Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window's tool bar.



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Viewing Other Event Phenomena

Click any WDU event marker in the Event List or Time Plot window.

A Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window appears for the selected event.

If there is no WDU file for the selected event, "Specified WDU file not present" appears.

Viewing Energy Consumption [Integrated Power Window]

Energy consumption measured with the Hioki 3196 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as a time series graph (Integrated Power window).



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Integrated Power window's tool bar.



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

When the A/B Cursor dialog is open, A/B cursor movement has priority over the usual screen cursor.

Viewing a Demand Graph

[Demand Window]

Data measured with the Hioki 3196 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as a demand graph (Demand window).



tart demand calcula	tion	x
Measurement period	2003/02/12 20:04:59 - 02/13 22:00:00	
<u>A</u> nalysis starting	2006/02/12 * 20:04:59 *	
Demand period	30 minutes 💌	
Analysis <u>p</u> eriod	1 Day	
OK	Cancel	

Demand calculation starts. When calculation finishes, the Demand window opens. If the specified starting time is not within the measurement span, demand calculation does not start.

Dem DEMAND Interval:30 minutes _ 🗆 🗵 Window tool bar Tdiv 6h/div • MAX demand value: 9.3920kW 07/10 11:08:22 AVE demand value: Cursor position: 9.2325kW 07/10 15:08:22 Load factor: 46.8% 4.3988kW **Cursor Position** Indicates maximum 2.0000kW/div You can move the cursor with the and average demand values, load mouse or by pressing the left/right factor, and the de-8.0000 arrow keys on the keyboard. mand value at the cursor position Average demand 4.0000k value Scrolls the window 07/10 07/09 07/10 00:38:22 06:38:22 • 18:38:22 12:38:22 18:38:22

Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Demand window's tool bar.

Tdiv 6h/div	T
X	-axis scale

Testing Measurement Data Conformance

[ITIC]

Voltage swell, dip and interruption data are displayed on a graph and judged against upper and lower limit curves (tolerance curves).

The graph plots percentage of nominal voltage (vertical axis) against time (in seconds, horizontal axis).

Event	Time [s]	Percent Nominal Voltage [%]
Voltage Swell	Continuous Swell Duration	Maximum Swell Voltage
Voltage Dip	Dip Duration	Residual Voltage (Dip Voltage Minimum)
Interruption	Continuous Interruption Duration	Residual Voltage (Interruption Voltage Minimum)

Two types of tolerance curves are available: the ITIC Curve used mainly in the USA, and a userdefined curve which can be set as needed.

See: "About CBEMA and ITIC Curves" (p. 77)

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

To display a tolerance curve, a EVT file containing voltage swell, dip or interruption data must be loaded.

Click the Figure (Open ITIC window) button or select View – ITIC Window from the menu bar. The ITIC window opens.



The event marker for the selected event blinks.

When "all CH" is selected for the channel on this window's tool bar, multiple event markers blink if an event occurred on multiple channels at the same time.

Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the ITIC window's tool bar.



NOTE About CBEMA and ITIC Curves

Mainly used in the USA, both curves are tolerance ranges for judging rms voltage fluctuations according to voltage swell, dip and interruption events.

The CBEMA Curve was created by the Computer Business Equipment Manufacturers Association. Later, CBEMA established a Working Group called the ITIC (Information Technology Industry Council), which created the ITIC Curve. Use of the CBEMA Curve in applications is now being replaced with the ITIC Curve.

Setting Tolerances (Making a User-Defined Curve)

Tolerance limits can be set freely.

To make user settings, select **User** (User-Defined Curve) as the Curve item on the tool bar in the ITIC window. A user-defined curve is a convenient way to provide a SEMI Curve (p. 79) for tolerance judgments.





Up to 20 decimal values can be entered in the x(s) and y(%) fields to define upper and lower curve limits. Millisecond values can be entered for x(s) by appending an "m" unit designator.

Enter values on consecutive lines to reach the edge of the graph.

See: "Curve Tables (Reference)" (p. 79)





Click the OK button.

The curve with the specified contents appears in the ITIC window.

Curve Tables (Reference)

ITIC Curve Chart

Upper lin	nit curve	Lower limit curve		
x [s]	y [%]	x [s]	y [%]	
1 m	200	20 m	0	
3 m	140	20 m	70	
3 m	120	500 m	70	
500 m	120	500 m	80	
500 m	110	10	80	
1000	110	10	90	
		1000	90	

SEMI Curve Chart

Upper li	mit curve	Lower limit curve		
x[s]	y [%]	x[s]	y [%]	
		20 m	0	
		20 m	50	
		200 m	50	
		200 m	70	
		500 m	70	
		500 m	80	
		10	80	
		10	90	
		1000	90	

SEMI curve is made by the SEMI (Semiconductor Equipment and Materials International). It judges the voltage dip and interruption only, and has easier limit than the ITIC curve between 20ms and 200ms.

There is no upper limit curve in the SEMI curve, but we recommend using the upper limit value; x:1m, y:200 and x:1000, y:200.

CISPR24 Curve Chart

Upper li	mit curve	Lower limit curve		
x [s]	y [%]	x [s]	y [%]	
		20 m	30	
		500 m	30	
		500 m	95	
		5	95	
		5	100	
		1000	100	

Per operating judgment standard C

Viewing a Delta V10 Flicker Graph

[Delta V10 Flicker Window]

Data measured with the Hioki 3196 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as a flicker graph (Delta V10 Flicker window).

The Delta V10 Flicker window is equivalent to the Delta V10 Flicker Graph (TIME PLOT) screen on the Hioki 3196.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

The Delta V10 Flicker window can be displayed only when an FLC file containing Delta V10 Flicker data is loaded.

Click the 4 (Open Delta V10 Flicker window) button or select View – Delta V10 Flicker Window from the menu bar.

The Delta V10 Flicker window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Delta V10 Flicker window's tool bar.



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Viewing an IEC Flicker Graph

[IEC Flicker Window]

Data measured with the Hioki 3196 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as flicker graph (IEC Flicker window).

The IEC Flicker window is equivalent to the IEC Flicker Graph (TIME PLOT) screen on the Hioki 3196.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

The IEC Flicker window can be displayed only when an FLC file containing IEC Flicker data is loaded.

Click the **Fic** (Open IEC Flicker Window) button or select **View – IEC Flicker Window** from the menu bar.

The IEC Flicker window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the IEC Flicker window's tool bar.



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Viewing Setting Conditions for Measurement Data

The settings associated with the currently loaded data can be viewed in the Settings window. The Settings window is equivalent to the SYSTEM screen on the Hioki 3196.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

The Settings window can only be displayed when an SET file is loaded. In addition, the EN50160 setting tabs are not displayed unless EN50160 data is included in the loaded data.



Click the window opens. (View system settings) button or select View – SYSTEM from the menu bar.

Select the tabs to view each setting.

5 Y	STEM							×
	MEASURE	EVENT VOLT	AGE EVENT I	owi	R U Harm	nonics I H	armonics P F	١
		123ch	4ch					
	Wiring	3P3W3M	AC	U	Reference		6.6000kV	
	Clamp	1mV/A 9661	1mV/A 9661	Fr	equency		60Hz	
	U Range	9.0000kV	9.0000kV	P	L Source		U1	
	PT Raito	0060.00	0060.00	U	Calc Type		LINE-LINE	
	IRange	50.000 A	50.000 A	H	arm Calc		for EN	
	CT Raito	0001.00	0001.00	T	HD Calc		THD_F	
				P	Туре		PF	
	I			l n	-1		DK D.,	

Correspondence Between Tabs and Hioki 3196 Setting Screens

PQA-HiView Pro Tab Name	Hioki 3196 Settings Screen
Measurement	SYSTEM–DF2–MAIN Measurement and Partial Recording
Voltage Events	SYSTEM-DF3-EVENT-VOLTAGE
Power Events	SYSTEM-DF3-EVENT-POWER
Voltage Harmonics	SYSTEM-DF3-EVENT-HARMONICS
Current Harmonics	SYSTEM-DF3-EVENT-HARMONICS
Power Harmonics	SYSTEM-DF3-EVENT-HARMONICS
Harmonic Phase Difference	SYSTEM-DF3-EVENT-HARMONICS
EN50160 (1)	EVENT–DF4–EN50160–Setting1 (When EN50160 measurement is enabled)
EN50160 (2)	EVENT–DF4–EN50160–Setting2 (When EN50160 measurement is enabled)
EN50160 (3)	EVENT–DF4–EN50160–Setting3 (When EN50160 measurement is enabled)

Viewing EN50160 Mode Measurement Data

Data measured on the Hioki 3196 with the EN50160 function enabled can be displayed in the EN50160 window.

This window is equivalent to the EVENT - EN50160 screens (Overview, Harmonic, Signaling and Events screens) on the Hioki 3196.

The EN50160 mode provides the following four windows:

- Overview Window (p. 83)
- Harmonic Window (p. 85)
- Signaling Window (p. 86)
- Measurement Result Classification Window (p. 87)

Overview Window

(Open EN50160 Overview Window) button, or select View - EN50160 from Click the the menu bar to activate the EN50160 mode.

See: "Switching Modes" (p. 55)

When the EN50160 mode is activated, the button appears pressed, and the View - EN50160 item in the menu has a check mark.

الے Click the (Open EN50160 Overview window) button or select View - Overview from the menu bar.

The Overview window opens.



The Good% value can be

Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Overview window's tool bar.



Reference: When a voltage swell, dip or interruption event occurs, other parameter data (such as frequency) might interfere with the reliability of the occurrence data. In that case, other data can be flagged so that when a voltage swell, dip or interruption event occurs, the other data can be excluded from the statistics to improve reliability.



Changing the Good% value

Click the Good% setting area.

The Change Good% dialog box opens.



5

Enter a new value for the Good%, and click the **OK** button. The entered Good% value is reflected in the Overview window.

Harmonic Window

Click the (Switch to EN50160 Window) button, or select View – EN50160 from the menu bar to activate the EN50160 mode.

See: "Switching Modes" (p. 55)

When the EN50160 mode is activated, the button appears pressed, and the View – EN50160 item in the menu has a check mark.

Click the []] (Open EN50160 Harmonic window) button or select View – Harmonic from the menu bar.

The Harmonic window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Harmonic window's tool bar.

	◀	2	Order
--	---	---	-------

Orders from the 2nd to the 50th can be selected. The first order is not selectable.

Signaling Window

Click the (Switch to EN50160 Window) button, or select View – EN50160 from the menu bar to activate the EN50160 mode.

See: "Switching Modes" (p. 55)

When the EN50160 mode is activated, the button appears pressed, and the View – EN50160 item in the menu has a check mark.



	Signaling	
Window tool bar	From: 08/05 💌 00:00 💌 Period: 1 day Excluding flagging data 💌	
	Display From : 08/05 11:40 To : 08/05 23:59 Good% 99.0%	The Good% value can be
	All CH1 100.0%	changed (p. 84)
	CH2 100.0% 110Hz-3kHz CH3 100.0%	Changed. (p. 64)
	Specified CH1 %	
	Frequency CH2	
	Specified CH1 ·····*	
	Frequency CH2 ·····% OFF CH3 ·····%	

Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Signaling window's tool bar.



Select whether to include other (flagged) data when a statistical voltage swell, dip or interruption occurs. (p. 84)



Changing the Good% value

Click the Good% location.

The Change Good% dialog box opens.

	💐 Signaling				Click		
l	From: 08/05	• 0	0:00 💌 Period: 1 day Excluding fla	agging data	CIICK		
ſ	Display From :	08/0	5 11:40 To : 08/05 23:59	300d% 99.0%		Change Good%	×
l	All	CH1	100.0%			- Freq A	
l		CH2	100.0%			neq.A	
l	110Hz-3kHz	CH3	100.0%			99.5 ->	99.5
l	Specified	CH1					
l	Frequency	CH2				OK	Cancel
l	OFF	CH3					
	a 10 1	~	a.				



Enter a new value for the Good%, and click the **OK** button. The entered Good% value is reflected in the Signaling window.

Measurement Result Classification Window

Results can be classified as needed, and saved.

Click the (Switch to EN50160 Window) button, or select View – EN50160 from the menu bar to activate the EN50160 mode.

See: "Switching Modes" (p. 55)

When the EN50160 mode is activated, the button appears pressed, and the View – EN50160 item in the menu has a check mark.

Click the (Open EN50160 Measurement Result Classification window) button or select **View – Measurement Result Classification** from the menu bar.

The Measurement Result Classification window opens.



See: "Three-Phase RMS Voltage Fluctuation Graph" (p. 89)

Changing Measurement Result Classifications

Make the Measurement Result Classification window active and select **Measurement Result Classification – Editor of Measurement Result Classification**.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The Measurement Result Classification editor window opens.

Change the entries in the desired Duration or Voltage fields.

Т

Enter Voltage classifications.

Enter Duration classifications.

E	litor of Me sureme	nt Result	: Classifica	tion												X
										· · · · · ·			_			
										<u></u> Sε	t as <u>D</u> efa	ault Value	<u> </u>	<u>S</u> ave		pen
	Dir r Swell							Uuration Elst					_			
	v(age u		0.5eve < t	100m <	t 500m	<1 1	<1	3<1	20 < 1		1 > 6	18	11 > D		< 1	1>
	flreft	≤ F	100m	≤ 500m	≤ 1	<u>≤</u> 3	··· ≤ [20	≤ [60		≤ 180	- <u>- </u> <		≤			
	180 < u ≦			·····		~~~	~1~~~~			1 ·			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		~	
	160 < u ≦ [180	σ 🖾													\otimes	
	140 < u ≦ [160	5 🔀										*****			\otimes	
	120 < u ≦ 140	<u> </u>	<u></u>								5 🖂 🖂		<u> </u>	<u></u>	\otimes	<u></u>
	110 < u ≦ [120	<u>)</u>			9										\otimes	<u></u>
		× ×	******								2					
	70 ≤u<	-9						<u></u>			5 <u>22</u> 2	*****	<u> </u>	*****		<u></u>
	40 Su <		******						*****		2 22 2	*****				<u></u>
	10 5 4 4	4	******						*****		5 88 8	*****		*****		
	1 2 4 4	- 🔛	******						*****			*****	****	*****		
	101				******					1000000		~~~~~	xxx40			
						OK	Ca	ncel								
_						_					_					
Click Set a to their def	s Default V aults.	Value	e. Dur	ation a	nd volta	age clas	sificati	ion val	lues	are r	eset					
To save the Click Save Saves the Result Cla file.	ne current duration ar ssification	clas nd vol Editir	sifica Itage ng wir	ation se classific ndow as	ettings cation v s a me	values ir asurem	the ta ent res	ble dis sults cl	splay lassi	/ed in ficati	the on s	Mea ettin	asur Igs (eme ESP	nt)	
To load ar Click Oper	n existing n.	clas	sifica	tion se	ttings	file										

5

Click the **OK** button.

The duration and voltage classification values in the table displayed in the Measurement Result Classification Editing window are applied to the Measurement Result Classification window.

Measurement Result Classification Defaults

Swell, Dip, Interruption

Voltago u		Duration t (seconds)									
(% of Uref)	0.5cyc < t ≤ 100 m	100 m < t ≤ 500 m	500 m < t ≤ 1	1 < t ≤ 3	3 < t ≤ 20	20 < t ≤ 60	60 < t ≤ 180	180 < t			
180 < u											
160 < u ≤ 180											
140 < u ≤ 160											
120 < u ≤ 140											
110 < u ≤ 120											
70 ≤ u < 90											
40 ≤ u < 70											
10 ≤ u < 40											
1 ≤ u < 10											
u < 1											



Three-Phase RMS Voltage Fluctuation Graph

Analyzing Measurement Data from the Hioki 3197 Chapter 5

Hioki 3197 Measurement Data Window Layout

Window Display

The Measurement Data window appears when measurement data is loaded.



Any window can be displayed using the menu or tool bar. A window can also be changed by right clicking within it and selecting another window to display from the pop-up menu.

See: "Menu Bar Operations" (p. 92), "Tool Bar Operations" (p. 95) "Changing Windows" (p. 17)

Menu Bar Operations

Clicking a menu item displays one of the pull-down menus shown below. Items not available for the current window are grayed out.



1 File

Click File and select from the pull-down menu.

		The same operations are available on the tool b	oar (p. 95).
File		¥	
Open Recent folder	Open	Opens a file.	(p. 14)
Download Close	Recent folder	Displays recently used folders.	
Report Wizard Print	Download	Downloads data from internal memory of the 3196 or PC card via LAN.	(p. 44)
Save the active data as a CSV file	Close	Closes the currently active window.	
Open Integrated Files Save Integrated Files	Report Wizard	Sets the conditions for creating a report.	(p. 28)
Currently-used Integrated Files	Print	Prints the currently active window.	(p. 24)
LAR	Save the active data as a CSV file	Saves the loaded data as a CSV format file.	(p. 35)
	Open Integrated Files	Opens a setting file for the 9624-50.	(p. 47)
	Save Integrated Files	Saves a setting file for the 9624-50.	(p. 47)
	Currently-used Integrat- ed Files	Displays recently used compound files.	
	Exit	Closes the PQA-HiView Pro program.	(p. 12)

2 Edit

Click Edit and select from the pull-down menu.

...

		The	same operations are available on the tool	bar (p. 95).
Edit		¥		
Copy Ctrl+C	Сору		Displays can be copied to the clipboard.	(p. 27)

3 View

Click **View** and select the window or items to display from the pull-down menu.

View	The same	opera	tions are available on the tool bar (p. 93).	
Tool Bar		•		
 ✓ EVENT LIST Window ✓ EVENT DATA Window 	Tool BarShows or hides the standard tool bar (t and window tool bar (left).			
ITIC Window Open new TIME PLOT Window Delta V10 Flicker Window	EVENT LIST Window		Opens the event list window. To re-order the displayed list, select Sort by Time (–) or Sort by Time (+)	(p. 100)
IEC Flicker Window Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph Inrush Current Event Graph			Opens the event details window. You can select the following window data types:	
Integrated Power Window Demand Window	EVENT DATA Window		Event Details WindowVoltage/Current Waveform Window	(p. 101)
EN50160 Ctrl-			Voltage Waveform Window	
SYSTEM				
	Open new TIME PLOT Window	2	Opens up to four new TIME PLOT windows. You can select the following window data types: • RMS Window • Voltage Window	(p. 96)
	Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph	Ť	Opens the Voltage Fluctuation Event Win- dow. (A WDU file of the voltage fluctuation event graph for the selected event must be loaded in order to display this window)	(p. 106)
	Inrush Current Event Graph	X	Opens the Inrush Current Graph window. (An INR file of the inrush current graph must exist for the selected event in order to display this window)	(p. 107)
	Integrated Power Win- dow	₩h	Opens the Integrated Power window.	(p. 108)
	Demand Window	Dem	Opens the Demand window.	(p. 109)
	SYSTEM		Displays the settings on the Hioki 3197.	(p. 110)

The same operations are available on the tool bar (p. 95).

Hioki 3197 Measurement Data Window Layout

4 Window

Click Window and select from the pull-down menu.

This menu includes the names of the currently displayed windows.

Window		The same operations are available on the tool ba ↓	ır (p. 95).
A and B cursor	Tile	Arranges display of all open windows. (p	. 26)
2 Event details [No.1 02/14 09:19:08.1: 3 EVENT LIST	A and B cursor	Select to demarcate a span or view values at cursor positions.	. 21)

5 EVENT LIST/ EVENT DATA/ TIME PLOT

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

The menu displayed depends on the selected window.

Click **EVENT LIST**, **EVENT DATA** or **TIME PLOT** to select a window from the corresponding pulldown menu.

You can also right click and select a window to switch to from the pop-up menu.



6 Help

Click **Help** and select from the pull-down menu.

Help

Displays version information for the Hioki 9624-50 PQA-HiView Pro program.

Version of 9624-50 PQA-HiVIEW PRO...



Tool bar (window)

8

	1	1	Show/hide EVENT LIST Window	(p. 100)
	2	2	Show/hide EVENT DATA Window	(p. 101)
M	3	3	Open new TIME PLOT Window	(p. 96)
lie		4	Open Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph	(p. 106)
	4	5	Open the Inrush Current Graph window	(p. 107)
<u>_</u>	ວ 6	6	Wh Open Integrated Power Window	(p. 108)
	7	7	Dem Open Demand Window	(p. 109)
<u>-</u>		8	View system settings	(p. 110)
<u>第</u>				

Viewing a Time Series Graph

Data measured with the Hioki 3197 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as a time series graph (Time Plot window). The program's Time Plot windows correspond to each Time Plot screen on the Hioki 3197.

The following two types of Time Plot windows can be displayed and switched, with up to four displayed at a time.

- RMS Window (p. 98)
- VOLTAGE Window(p. 99)

Opening and Switching Time Plot Windows

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

To display a Time Plot window, the loaded data must include an ITV file.

Click the [M] (Open Time Plot Window) button or select View – Open new TIME PLOT window from the menu bar.

A Time Plot Window opens.

You can open up to four windows by clicking the button or selecting from the menu bar repeatedly.



Click an event marker to view an event phenomenon in the other windows.

Scrolls the window

Move a scroll box or click within the scroll bar. When scrolling horizontally, all open Time Plot windows scroll together.

[TIME PLOT]

See: "Viewing Event Phenomena" (p. 19)

Switching Windows

Δ

Activate the Time Plot window to be switched, and select the desired window to display from the **TIME PLOT** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)



Changing Displayed Contents

When the RMS window is active, it's own tool bar is displayed. Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the RMS window's tool bar.


Viewing Voltage Fluctuations

[TIME PLOT – VOLTAGE]

Open a Time Plot window.

See: "Opening and Switching Time Plot Windows" (p. 96)

Activate the Time Plot window and select **VOLTAGE** from the **TIME PLOT** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The Voltage window opens.



Voltage fluctuation data consists of pairs of maximum and minimum values for every measurement interval. Therefore, expanding the horizontal scale reveals the data as a series of vertical lines between each pair of maximum and minimum values at each measurement interval. There is no horizontal line through the space between measurement intervals.

Changing Displayed Contents

When the Voltage window is active, it's own tool bar is displayed. Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Voltage window's tool bar.



Viewing Events as a List

Data measured with the Hioki 3197 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed in a list (in the Event List window.

The Event List window is equivalent to the EVENT – LIST screen on the Hioki 3197. To re-order the displayed list, select Sort by Time (-) or Sort by Time (+).

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

To display the Event List window, the loaded data must include an EVT file.

Click the (Show/hide EVENT LIST window) button or select View - EVENT LIST Window from the menu bar.

The Event List window opens.



arrow keys on the keyboard to view the event phenomenon in other windows.

See: "Viewing Event Phenomena" (p. 19)

Re-Ordering the Display of Events

Activate the Event List window and select Sort by Time (-) or Sort by Time (+) from the EVENT LIST menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The list is re-ordered according to your selection.

[EVENT LIST]

[EVENT DATA]

Viewing Event Measurement Data

Data measured with the Hioki 3197 upon the occurrence of an event can be displayed as a graph and listed in the Event Data window.

The Event Data window is equivalent to the EVENT screen on the Hioki 3197.

The Event Data window can be switched between the following four types.

- Event details Window (p. 102)
- VOLTAGE/CURRENT Window (p. 103)
- VOLTAGE Window (p. 104)
- CURRENT Window (p. 105)

In this manual, the above windows are collectively called "Event Data windows".

Opening and Switching Event Data Windows

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

2

Click the Click

The Event data window opens.



Click an event marker or an event in the Event List to display a graph of the event. **See:** "Viewing Event Phenomena" (p. 19)

Switching Windows

Activate the Event Data window and select the desired window from the **EVENT DATA** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

Viewing Event Measurement Data [EVENT DATA]

Viewing Event Details

Open the Event Data window.

See: "Opening and Switching Event Data Windows" (p. 101)

2 Activate the Event Data window and select **Event details** from the **EVENT DATA** menu.

You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu.

The Event details window opens.

When you select an event in the Event List window, multiple event contents associated with that event occurrence are displayed.

Event details [No.4 07/12 10:36:25.944 Inrush]		
Date Time	Event Category	
2006/07/12 10:36:25.944	Inrush	
2006/07/12 10:36:25.952	Dip CH1 IN 90.00 %	
2006/07/12 10:36:26.019	Dip CH1 OUT 88.67 V 00:00:00.067	
8		



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Event Data window's tool bar.



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Time and numerical values at A and B cursor locations



Differences between A and B data (B - A)

The time difference between cursors is calculated using internal data resolution of less than 0.001 seconds, but the last digit (0.001 s) may not be exact.



Viewing Event Measurement Data [EVENT DATA]

Viewing Voltage Waveforms [VOLTAGE] Open the Event Data window. See: "Opening and Switching Event Data Windows" (p. 101) Activate the Event Data window and select the VOLTAGE window from the EVENT DATA menu. You can also right click and select from the pop-up menu. The Voltage window opens. Window tool bar CH1 (Red) CH2 (Yellow-Green) CH3 (Blue)

Up to 14 cycles (50 Hz) or 16 cycles (60 Hz) can be analyzed.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Voltage window's tool bar.



Y-axis scale of voltage waveform

X-axis scale of waveform

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Current window's tool bar.







Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Viewing Voltage Fluctuation Details

[Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph]

Voltage fluctuation phenomena (swells, dips and interruptions) that occurred within data measured by the Hioki 3197 can be displayed graphically (in the Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window). This window is equivalent to the EVENT-RMS WAVE screen on the Hioki 3197.

A Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph can be displayed only when an Event file (WDU file) is loaded. Event files can be confirmed in the Event List (p. 100).

A Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph is a 3-second time series graph of rms voltage calculated over one half-cycle-shifted waveform.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

Click the (Open Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph) button or select View – Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph from the menu bar.

The Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window's tool bar.



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

Viewing Other Event Phenomena

5

Click any WDU event marker in the Event List or Time Plot window.

A Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph window appears for the selected event. If there is no WDU file for the selected event, "Specified WDU file not present" appears.

Viewing an Inrush Current Graph

[Inrush Current Event Graph]

Data measured with the Hioki 3197 Power Quality Analyzer when an inrush current event occurs can be displayed as a graph (Inrush Current Event Graph). The Inrush Current Event Graph window is equivalent to the EVENT-INRUSH screen on the Hioki 3197.

The inrush current graph can be displayed only when an event (INR) file is loaded. Event files can be confirmed in the Event List (p. 100). This is a 30-second time series graph of rms current calculated every half cycle.



Load the measurement data. See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

Click the [] (Open Inrush Current Event Graph) button or select View – Inrush Current

Event Graph from the menu bar.

The Inrush Current Event Graph window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Inrush Current Event Graph window's tool bar.



Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)



Click any INRUSH event marker in the Event List or Time Plot window. An Inrush Current Event Graph window appears for the selected event. If there is no INR file for the selected event, "Specified INR file not present" appears.

Viewing Energy Consumption [Integrated Power Window]

Energy consumption measured with the Hioki 3197 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as a time series graph (Integrated Power window).

The Integrated Power window is equivalent to the TIMEPLOT-ENERGY screen on the Hioki 3197.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

Click the <u>Wh</u> (Open Integrated Power window) button or select <u>View – Integrated Power</u> Window from the menu bar.

The Integrated Power window opens.

Window tool bar	Wh Integrated Power WP+ I I X WP+ ▼ T dw 30h/dw ▼ Cursor position: 1.3372MW/h 01/25 20:00:00 Maximum integrated power value: 2.1529MW/h 0.0000MW/h/div	Indicates energy
per (vertical) division	Cursor Position 20000 You can move the cursor with the mouse or by pressing the left/right arrow keys on the keyboard. 1.00004 01/17 01/18 01/20 01/21 01/22 01/23 01/25 01/26 01/27 1300.00 19:00:00 01:00:00 07:00:00 19:00:00 01:00:00 07:00:00 13:00:00	consumption at the cursor position, and maximum energy consumption.
		Scrolls the window

Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Integrated Power window's tool bar.

WP+	T div 30h/d	fiv 💌	
Displ	ay item	X-axis scale	

Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)

Measurement values can be confirmed using the cursors. In addition, the minimum, maximum and average values over any span can be displayed.

See: "Viewing Measurement Data as Numerical Values (Cursor Measurement)" (p. 21)

When the A/B Cursor dialog is open, A/B cursor movement has priority over the usual screen cursor.

Viewing a Demand Graph

[Demand Window]

Data measured with the Hioki 3197 Power Quality Analyzer can be displayed as a demand graph (Demand window).

The Demand window is equivalent to the TIMEPLOT-DEMAND screen on the Hioki 3197.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

If the measurement duration of the loaded data is too short, the Demand window cannot be displayed.

Click the **Dem** (Open Demand window) button or select **View – Demand Window** from the menu bar.

The Demand window opens.



Changing Displayed Contents

Select the items you want to change from the pull-down menus in the Demand window's tool bar



To change the cursor position

Click the point where you want to move the cursor, or press the right- or left-arrow key on the keyboard to move the cursor.

Maximum and average demand values, load factor, and the demand value at the cursor position are shown.

Viewing Setting Conditions for Measurement Data

The settings associated with the currently loaded data can be viewed in the Settings window. The Settings window is equivalent to the SYSTEM screen on the Hioki 3197.

Load the measurement data.

See: "Loading Data" (p. 14)

The Settings window can only be displayed when an SET file is loaded.

Click the **W** (View system settings) button or select **View – SYSTEM** from the menu bar. The System window opens.

Select the tabs to view each setting.



Correspondence Between Tabs and Hioki 3197 Setting Screens

PQA-HiView Pro Tab Name	Hioki 3197 Settings Screen
Measurement	SYSTEM measurement settings and some recording events
Event	Event portion of SYSTEM recording events

Specifications

Chapter 6

General Specifications

Supported Model	Model 3196 Power Quality AnalyzerModel 3197 Power Quality Analyzer
Supplied Media	One CD-R disc
Accessories	Instruction Manual

Hioki 3196 Function Specifications and Calculation Formulas

Data Reading Functions

Reading Data	Binary data recorded by the 3196 SET files
	EN50160.EN files EN50160 data EVENT.EN files EN50160 event data
Reading Method	Reads the above file types in folder units
Maximum Data Capacity	528 MB

Hioki 3196 Function Specifications and Calculation Formulas

Data Display Functions

SYSTEM Display Function

Screen Display S	SYSTEM (Settings) content display

■ TIME PLOT Display Function

Screen Display	 Display of one to four of the following screens 1. RMS fluctuation 2. Voltage fluctuation 3. Harmonics fluctuation 4. Interharmonics fluctuation
Number of Display Screens	Up to four
Cursor Function	A and B cursors (specify an interval for calculations)
Event Marker Function	Uses the marker to indicate where an event has occurred (selectable using the cursor key).

EVENT List Display Function

Screen Display	EVENT list content display
Display Method Selection	Chronological or priority order
WDU Display Function	Displays "WDU" for a selected event with event voltage fluctuation data.

Display Function	Displays the event data selected on the Event list display screen (Synchronized switch- over) Displays the event marker data selected on the TIME PLOT display screen (Synchro- nized switch-over)
Screen Display	 One of the following six screen displays Event details displays Detailed event data is displayed. Waveform displays Voltage/current waveforms, 4-channel voltage waveforms, 4-channel current waveforms, Voltage/transient waveforms Vector displays RMS or Harmonic Phase Angle display DMM displays Power, Voltage or Current display RMS or Phase Angle displays RMS or Phase Angle display Harmonics Bar Graph displays RMS or Phase Angle display RMS or Phase Angle display
Cursor Function	A and B cursors on the waveform display window (specify an interval for calculations)
Zero/Positive/Negative Phase Calculation Function	Simultaneously displays the voltage and current of zero/positive/negative phase se- quence components in the vector window when analyzing 3P4W line data.
Event Marker Function	Uses the marker to indicate where an event has occurred on the waveform display screen.

EVENT Data Display Function

■ Flicker Graph Display Function

Screen Display	Displays the Delta V10 flicker graph or IEC flicker graph (The graph to be displayed depends on the data saved.)
Cursor Function	A and B cursors (specify an interval for calculations)

Event Voltage Fluctuation Graph Display Function

Screen Display	Displays the WDU event data selected on the Event list window. Displays the WDU event marker data selected on the TIME PLOT window.
Cursor Function	A and B cursors (specify an interval for calculations)
Event Marker Function	Uses the marker to indicate where an event has occurred

Hioki 3196 Function Specifications and Calculation Formulas

Integrated Power Calculation Function

Settings

Analysis Start Time	Year, month, day, hour, minute and second settings
Analysis Period	1 to 31 days

Display Method and Calculation Items

Screen Display	Integrated Power Value (consumed value + returned value) [Wh]
Numerical Display	Displays the following values within the analysis period Maximum integrated power value (the last integrated power value within an analysis period)
Cursor Function	 The following cursor functions are available Normal cursor (displays integrated power value at cursor position) A and B cursors (specify an interval for calculations)

Demand Calculation Function

Settings

Analysis Start Time	Year, month, day, hour, minute and second settings
Demand Period	5, 10, 15 or 30 minutes, or 1, 2, 3, 6 or 12 hours (can be set to the measurement interval of the 3196, or longer)
Analysis Period	1 to 31 days

Display Method and Calculation Items

Screen Display	Demand graph (consumption values only)
Numerical Display	 Displays the following values within the analysis period AVE Demand value (average demand within the analysis period) MAX Demand value (peak demand within the analysis period) Load factor (average demand / maximum demand x 100[%])
Cursor Function	Normal cursor (displays demand value at cursor position)

ITIC Curve Display Function

Display Function	Plots points for the events below on the limit curve.1. Points to indicate the duration of swell and maximum swell voltage2. Points to indicate the duration of dip and residual voltage3. Points to indicate the duration of interruption and residual voltage				
Percent of Nominal Voltage	Calculates the proportion of maximum swell voltage or residual voltage to nominal volt- age in percentage. Percent of nominal voltage = Peak value / UReference x 100 UReference: Nominal voltage Peak value: Maximum swell voltage in case of swell or residual voltage in case of dip/ interruption				
Violation Count Display	Number of upper-limit violations, number of lower-limit violations, and total number of events				
Limit Curve Selection	rve Selection ITIC curve, user-defined curve (e.g., arbitrary curve) ITIC curve values				
	Upper Lii	mit Curve	Lower Lir	nit Curve	I
	Horizontal axis [s]	Vertical axis [%]	Horizontal axis [s]	Vertical axis [%]	l.
	1 m	200	20 m	0	l.
	3 m	140	20 m	70	i i
	3 m	120	500 m	70	I
	500 m	120	500 m	80	i i
	500 m	110	10	80	I
	1000	110	10	90	I
			1000	90	I

EN50160 Data Viewer Function

Screen Display	 EN50160 windows 1 to 4 below are displayed simultaneously. Overview window Corresponds to the EVENT-EN50160-Over View window of the 3196. Harmonic window Corresponds to the EVENT-EN50160-Harmonics window of the 3196. Measurement result classification window Corresponds to the EVENT-EN50160-Events window of the 3196. Signaling details window Corresponds to the EVENT-EN50160-Signaling window of the 3196.
Screen Switching	Note that you must switch the normal display mode into the EN50160 display mode by pressing the EN button once.

Copy Function

Copy Contents

Save various windows as BMP files

Hioki 3196 Function Specifications and Calculation Formulas

Print Function

Printing Format	Screen Image printing
Printing Paper Sizes	A4 and Letter
Print Preview	Provided
Simultaneous Printing	Logo/Model, time (with selectable text to print)
Marker Simultaneous Printing	MAX/MIN/AVE, channel, order (with printing turned ON/OFF)

CSV Format Conversion Function

Convertible Screens	TIME PLOT window, Event waveform window, Flicker graph window, Event voltage fluc- tuation window, Demand window, Integrated power value window
Specific Conversions	 Range specified with A and B cursors (TIME PLOT window, Flicker graph window, Event voltage fluctuation window, Inte- grated power value window) Full range (Event waveform window, Demand window)
Conversion Items	The conversion items, channels, and MAX/ MIN/ AVE can be selected.

Select Text Function

Text Selectable Windows	DMM window, Harmonics list window
Copying	Saves data in the selected range as tab-delimited text.

Download via LAN

Communications Method	НТТР
Connection Method	LAN connection using Ethernet

Output Format	Prints out a report containing information set with the Text format file.	e report wiza	ard or saves	it in a Rich
Report Generation				
Methods	Report Output Items	Automatic (Fixed Output)	Individual Setting (Selectable)	Detail Setting (Selectable)
	RMS voltage fluctuation graph in Time Plot window	٠	•	●
	RMS current fluctuation graph in Time Plot window	×	٠	٠
	Voltage fluctuation, RMS fluctuation, harmonic fluctuation, inter-harmonic fluctuation in Time Plot window	×	×	۲
	Flicker graph, energy consumption graph, demand graph	×	×	•
	Total harmonic voltage distortion graph in Time Plot window	٠	٠	٠
	Total harmonic current distortion graph in Time Plot window	×	٠	٠
	EN50160 Overview data	•	٠	×
	EN50160 Signaling data	•	٠	×
	EN50160 Harmonic data	×	•	×
	EN50160 measurement result classification data	×	•	×
	Worst case	•	•	×
	Transient waveform	×	•*	×
	Max/min list	•	٠	×
	All-event waveform	•	٠	×
	All-event detail list	•	•	×
	Setting list	×	•	×

Report Creation Function

*. Transient waveform is selectable only when worst case is selected.

Setting Save Function

Files to Save	 User-defined curve file Setting file for sorting measurement results Setting file for report wizard Integrated file (combining the three files above)

Hioki 3196 Function Specifications and Calculation Formulas

Calculation Formulas

Integrated Power WH [Wh]

$$WH = \frac{\sum_{k=1}^{N} (Psum)}{k}$$

3.7

N: integrated sample count

n: sample count

• *k* = constant for per-hour conversion

Intervals	1	3	15	30	1	5	10	15	30	1	2
	seconds	seconds	seconds	seconds	minutes	minutes	minutes	minutes	minutes	hours	hours
k	3600	1200	240	120	60	12	6	4	2	1	0.5

- *Psum* = the average value during each interval
- This integrated power value includes both consumed power (+ values) and returned power (- values).

Demand Power [W]

$$Dem = \frac{\sum_{d=1}^{D} (Psum + 1)}{D}$$

- *D*: Count of average values of each interval within the demand period
- d: Count of samples
- Psum+ = the average value of each interval calculated by adding consumed power (+ values) as is, and 0 for returned power (- values).

Positive, Negative, and Zero Phase Calculation

 $\mathsf{Component} = \frac{1}{3} \sqrt{\frac{(V1 \cdot \cos(\alpha) + V2 \cdot \cos(\beta + seq2) + V3 \cdot \cos(r + seq3))^2 + (V1 \cdot \sin(\alpha) + V2 \cdot \sin(\beta + seq2) + V3 \cdot \sin(r + seq3))^2}$

Zero phase: $seq2 = 0^{\circ}$, $seq3 = 0^{\circ}$ Positive phase: $seq2 = 120^{\circ}$, $seq3 = 240^{\circ}$ Negative phase: $seq2 = 240^{\circ}$, $seq3 = 120^{\circ}$

Voltage component: V1 = U1, V2 = U2, V3 = U3, α = Phase angle of U1, β = Phase angle of U2, γ = Phase angle of U3

Current component: V1 = I1, V2 = I2, V3 = I3, α = Phase angle of I1, β = Phase angle of I2, γ = Phase angle of I3

Depth of Event [%] in ITIC Window or Measurement result classification Window

The depth is calculated as the proportion of peak voltage to nominal voltage. Percent of nominal voltage = Peak value / UReference x 100 Peak value: Peak voltage of the event UReference: Nominal voltage

Hioki 3197 Function Specifications

Data Reading Functions

Reading Data	Binary data recorded by the 3197 SET files Setting data ITV files TIME PLOT data EVT files Event data (list and voltage/current waveforms) WDU files Event voltage fluctuation data INR files Inrush current graph data DEM files Demand graph data
Reading Method	Reads the above file types in folder units
Maximum Data Capacity	4 MB

Data Display Functions

SYSTEM Display Function

Screen Display	SYSTEM (Settings) content display	
----------------	-----------------------------------	--

■ TIME PLOT Display Function

Screen Display	Displays the following windows RMS fluctuation Voltage fluctuation
Number of Display Screens	Up to four
Cursor Function	A and B cursors (specify an interval for calculations)
Event Marker Function	Uses the marker to indicate where an event has occurred (selectable using the cursor key).

Energy Consumption Display Function

Screen Display	Energy Consumption graph
Displayed Items	WP+, WP–, WQ LAG, WQ LEAD
Numerical Display	Maximum energy consumption during measurement
Cursor Function	Normal cursor (indicates energy consumption at cursor position)

Demand Display Functions

Screen Display	Demand Graph
Displayed Items	Pdem+, Pdem-, Qdem LAG, Qdem LEAD
Numerical Display	Maximum demand value during measurement, average demand during measurement
Cursor Function	Normal cursor (indicates demand at cursor position)

EVENT List Display Function

Screen Display	EVENT list content display
Display Method Selection	Chronological
WDU Display Function	Displays "WDU" for a selected event with event voltage fluctuation data.
INRUSH Display Function	Displays "INRUSH" for a selected event with event inrush current data.

EVENT Data Display Function

Display Function	Displays the event data selected on the Event list display screen (Synchronized switch- over) Displays the event marker data selected on the TIME PLOT display screen (Synchro- nized switch-over)
Screen Display	 One of the following screen displays 1. Event details displays Detailed event data is displayed. 2. Waveform displays Voltage/current waveforms, voltage waveforms, current waveforms
Cursor Function	A and B cursors on the waveform display window (specify an interval for calculations)
Event Marker Function	Uses the marker to indicate where an event has occurred on the waveform display screen.

Event Voltage Fluctuation Graph Display Function

Screen Display	Displays the WDU event data selected on the Event list window. Displays the WDU event marker data selected on the TIME PLOT window.
Cursor Function	A and B cursors (specify an interval for calculations)
Event Marker Function	Uses the marker to indicate where an event has occurred

■ Inrush Graph Display Function

Screen Display	Displays the INRUSH event data selected on the Event list window. Displays the INRUSH event marker data selected on the TIME PLOT window.
Cursor Function	A and B cursors (specify an interval for calculations)
Event Marker Function	Uses the marker to indicate where an event has occurred

Copy Function

|--|

Print Function

Printing Format	Screen Image printing
Printing Paper Sizes	A4 and Letter
Print Preview	Provided
Simultaneous Printing	Logo/Model, time (with selectable text to print)
Marker Simultaneous Printing	MAX/MIN/AVE, channel (with printing turned ON/OFF)

CSV Format Conversion Function

Convertible Screens	TIME PLOT window, Event waveform window, Event voltage fluctuation window, Inrush Current Event Graph window, Demand window, Integrated power value window
Specific Conversions	 Range specified with A and B cursors (TIME PLOT window, Event voltage fluctuation window, Inrush Current Event Graph window, Integrated power value window) Full range (Event waveform window, Demand window)
Conversion Items	The conversion items, channels, and MAX/ MIN/ AVE can be selected.

Report Creation Function

Output Format	Prints out a report containing information set with the report wizard or saves it in a Rich Text format file.			
Report Generation				
Methods	Report Output Items	Automatic (Fixed Output)	Individual Setting (Selectable)	Detail Setting (Selectable)
	RMS voltage fluctuation graph in TIME PLOT window	•	•	•
	RMS current fluctuation graph in TIME PLOT window	×	•	•
	Voltage fluctuation and RMS fluctuation in TIME PLOT window	×	×	•
	Flicker graph and demand graph	×	×	•
	Total harmonic voltage distortion graph in TIME PLOT window	•	•	•
	Worst case	٠	•	×
	Max/min list	٠	•	×
	All-event waveform	٠	•	×
	All-event detail list	٠	٠	×
	Setting list	×	٠	×

Setting Save Function

Files to Save

- Setting file for report wizardIntegrated file

Appendix

Appendix 1 3196 Data-header Composition

Text Time-sequence Data-header Composition

Remark: Each item is separated by a comma (,).

Classification	Header	Explanation		
Date and	Date	Date	2001/8/20	
Time	Time	Time	8:12:00	
Voltage	Umax1,,Umax3	Max. value of voltage fluctuation	CH1 - CH3	
fluctuation*	Umin1,,Umin3	Min. value of voltage fluctuation	CH1 - CH3	
	MaxFreq	Frequency		
	MaxUrms1,,MaxUrms4	RMS voltage value	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxU+peak1,,MaxU+peak4	Voltage waveform peak (+)	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxU-peak1,,MaxU-peak4	Voltage waveform peak (-)	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxIrms1,,MaxIrms4	RMS current value	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxI+peak1,,MaxI+peak4	Current waveform peak (+)	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxI-peak1,,MaxI-peak4	Current waveform peak (-)	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxUave	Average RMS voltage value	ave	
	Maxlave	Average RMS current value	ave	
	MaxP1,,MaxP3	Active power	CH1 - CH3	
	MaxPsum	Sum of active power	sum	
	MaxS1,,MaxS3	Apparent power	CH1 - CH3	
	MaxSsum	Sum of apparent power	sum	
	MaxQ1,,MaxQ3	Reactive power	CH1 - CH3	
RMS value	MaxQsum	Sum of reactive power	sum	
fluctuation	MaxPF1,,MaxPF3	Power factor/Displacement power factor	CH1 - CH3	
Maximum	MaxPFsum	Sum of Power factor/Displacement power factor	sum	
Value	MaxKF1,,MaxKF4	K factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxUunb	Voltage unbalance factor		
	Maxlunb	Current unbalance factor		
	MaxUthd1,,MaxUthd4	Total harmonic voltage distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxIthd1,,MaxIthd4	Total harmonic current distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxU1(1),,MaxU4(50)	Harmonic voltage	CH1 - CH4	1st - 50th
	MaxI1(1),,MaxI4(50)	Harmonic current	CH1 - CH4	1st - 50th
	MaxP1(1),,MaxP3(50)	Harmonic power	CH1 - CH3	1st - 50th
	MaxPhase1(1),,MaxPhase3(50)	Harmonic voltage-current phase difference	CH1 - CH3	1st - 50th
	MaxPsum(1),,MaxPsum(50)	Sum of harmonic power	sum	1st - 50th
	MaxPhasesum(1),,MaxPhasesum(50)	Sum of harmonic voltage-current phase difference	sum	1st - 50th
	MaxUtihd1,,MaxUtihd4	Total harmonic voltage distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxItihd1,,MaxItihd4	Total harmonic current distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MaxU1(0.5),,MaxU4(49.5)	Inter-harmonic voltage	CH1 - CH4	0.5 - 49.5th
	MaxI1(0.5),,MaxI4(49.5)	Inter-harmonic current	CH1 - CH4	0.5 - 49.5th

*: When ΔU is selected as the voltage recording setting, Umax1,Umax3 becomes dUmax1,dUmax3, and Umin1,Umin3 becomes dUmin1,dUmin3.

Classification	Header	Explanation		
	MinFreq	Frequency		
	MinUrms1,,MinUrms4	RMS voltage value	CH1 - CH4	
	MinU+peak1,,MinU+peak4	Voltage waveform peak (+)	CH1 - CH4	
	MinU-peak1,,MinU-peak4	Voltage waveform peak (-)	CH1 - CH4	
	MinIrms1,,MinIrms4	RMS current value	CH1 - CH4	
	MinI+peak1,,MinI+peak4	Current waveform peak (+)	CH1 - CH4	
	MinI-peak1,,MinI-peak4	Current waveform peak (-)	CH1 - CH4	
	MinUave	Average RMS voltage value	ave	
	Minlave	Average RMS current value	ave	
	MinP1,,MinP3	Active power	CH1 - CH3	
	MinPsum	Sum of active power	sum	
	MinS1,,MinS3	Apparent power	CH1 - CH3	
	MinSsum	Sum of apparent power	sum	
	MinQ1,,MinQ3	Reactive power	CH1 - CH3	
	MinQsum	Sum of reactive power	sum	
fluctuation	MinPF1,,MinPF3	Power factor/Displacement power factor	CH1 - CH3	
Minimum	MinPFsum	Sum of Power factor/Displacement power factor	sum	
value	MinKF1,,MinKF4	K factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MinUunb	Voltage unbalance factor		
	Minlunb	Current unbalance factor		
	MinUthd1,,MinUthd4	Total harmonic voltage distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MinIthd1,,MinIthd4	Total harmonic current distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MinU1(1),,MinU4(50)	Harmonic voltage	CH1 - CH4	1st - 50th
	MinI1(1),,MinI4(50)	Harmonic current	CH1 - CH4	1st - 50th
	MinP1(1),,MinP3(50)	Harmonic power	CH1 - CH3	1st - 50th
	MinPhase1(1),,MinPhase3(50)	Harmonic voltage-current phase difference	CH1 - CH3	1st - 50th
	MinPsum(1),,MinPsum(50)	Sum of harmonic power	sum	1st - 50th
	MinPhasesum(1),,MinPhasesum(50)	Sum of harmonic voltage-current phase difference	sum	1st - 50th
	MinUtihd1,,MinUtihd4	Total harmonic voltage distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MinItihd1,,MinItihd4	Total harmonic current distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	MinU1(0.5),,MinU4(49.5)	Inter-harmonic voltage	CH1 - CH4	0.5 - 49.5th
	MinI1(0.5),,MinI4(49.5)	Inter-harmonic current	CH1 - CH4	0.5 - 49.5th

Classification	Header	Explanation		
	AveFreq	Frequency		
	AveUrms1,,AveUrms4	RMS voltage value	CH1 - CH4	
	AveU+peak1,,AveU+peak4	Voltage waveform peak (+)	CH1 - CH4	
	AveU-peak1,,AveU-peak4	Voltage waveform peak (-)	CH1 - CH4	
	Avelrms1,,Avelrms4	RMS current value	CH1 - CH4	
	Avel+peak1,,Avel+peak4	Current waveform peak (+)	CH1 - CH4	
	Avel-peak1,,Avel-peak4	Current waveform peak (-)	CH1 - CH4	
	AveUave	Average RMS voltage value	ave	
	Avelave	Average RMS current value	ave	
	AveP1,,AveP3	Active power	CH1 - CH3	
	AvePsum	Sum of active power	sum	
	AveS1,,AveS3	Apparent power	CH1 - CH3	
	AveSsum	Sum of apparent power	sum	
	AveQ1,,AveQ3	Reactive power	CH1 - CH3	
PMS value	AveQsum	Sum of reactive power	sum	
fluctuation	AvePF1,,AvePF3	Power factor/Displacement power factor	CH1 - CH3	
Average	AvePFsum	Sum of Power factor/Displacement power factor	sum	
value	AveKF1,,AveKF4	K factor	CH1 - CH4	
	AveUunb	Voltage unbalance factor		
	Avelunb	Current unbalance factor		
	AveUthd1,,AveUthd4	Total harmonic voltage distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	Avelthd1,,Avelthd4	Total harmonic current distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	AveU1(1),,AveU4(50)	Harmonic voltage	CH1 - CH4	1st - 50th
	Avel1(1),,Avel4(50)	Harmonic current	CH1 - CH4	1st - 50th
	AveP1(1),,AveP3(50)	Harmonic power	CH1 - CH3	1st - 50th
	AvePhase1(1),,AvePhase3(50)	Harmonic voltage-current phase difference	CH1 - CH3	1st - 50th
	AvePsum(1),,AvePsum(50)	Sum of harmonic power	sum	1st - 50th
	AvePhasesum(1),,AvePhasesum(50)	Sum of harmonic voltage-current phase difference	sum	1st - 50th
	AveUtihd1,,AveUtihd4	Total harmonic voltage distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	Aveltihd1,,Aveltihd4	Total harmonic current distortion factor	CH1 - CH4	
	AveU1(0.5),,AveU4(49.5)	Inter-harmonic voltage	CH1 - CH4	0.5 - 49.5th
	Avel1(0.5),,Avel4(49.5)	Inter-harmonic current	CH1 - CH4	0.5 - 49.5th

Delta V10 Flicker Text Time-sequence Data-header Composition

Classification	Header	Explanation	Example
Data and Time	Date	Date	2001/11/02
Date and Time	Time	Time	17:19:00
Delta V10	dv10	Delta V10 instantaneous value	0.081
	max	Delta V10 total maximum value	0.158
	dv10max	Delta V10 maximum value for one hour	0.000
	dv10max4	Delta V10 fourth largest value for one hour	0.000
	dv10ave	Delta V10 average value for one hour	0.000

IEC Flicker Text Time-sequence Data-header Composition

Classification	Header	Explanation	Example
Data and Time	Date	Date	2002/3/5
Date and Time	Time	Time	15:24:15
	Pst 1	CH1 Pst	0.325
Pst, Plt	Pst 2	CH2 Pst	0.386
	Pst 3	CH3 Pst	0.358
	Plt 1	CH1 Plt	0.325
	Plt 2	CH2 Plt	0.386
	Plt 3	CH3 Plt	0.358

Appendix 2 3197 Data-header Composition

Classification	Header	Explanation
Date	Date	Date
Time	Time	Time
Status	Status	Status
TIME PLOT	Umax1, Umax2, Umax3	Voltage Maximum value
DIP/SWELL	Umin1, Umin2, Umin3	Voltage Minimum value
	MaxFreq	Frequency
	MaxUrms1, MaxUrms2, MaxUrms3	Voltage
	MaxU+peak1, MaxU+peak2, MaxU+peak3	Voltage Waveform Peak+
	MaxU-peak1, MaxU-peak2, MaxU-peak3	Voltage Waveform Peak-
TIME PLOT	MaxIrms1, MaxIrms2, MaxIrms3, MaxIrms4	Current
RMS	MaxI+peak1, MaxI+peak2, MaxI+peak3, MaxI+peak4	Current Waveform Peak+
Maximum	MaxI-peak1, MaxI-peak2, MaxI-peak3, MaxI-peak4	Current Waveform Peak-
Values	MaxUave	Voltage for 3phase
	Maxlave	Current for 3phase
	MaxPsum, MaxSsum, MaxQsum	Active Power, Apparent Power, Reactive Power
	MaxPFsum, MaxUunb	Power Factor
	MaxUthd1, MaxUthd2, MaxUthd3	Total Harmonic Voltage Distortion Ratio
	MinFreq	Frequency
	MinUrms1, MinUrms2, MinUrms3	Voltage
	MinU+peak1, MinU+peak2, MinU+peak3	Voltage Waveform Peak+
	MinU-peak1, MinU-peak2, MinU-peak3	Voltage Waveform Peak-
	MinIrms1, MinIrms2, MinIrms3, MinIrms4	Current
TIME PLOT	Minl+peak1, Minl+peak2, Minl+peak3, Minl+peak4	Current Waveform Peak+
Minimum	Minl-peak1, Minl-peak2, Minl-peak3, Minl-peak4	Current Waveform Peak-
Values	MinUave	Voltage for 3phase
	Minlave	Current for 3phase
	MinPsum, MinSsum, MinQsum	Active Power, Apparent Power, Reactive Power
	MinPFsum, MinUunb	Power Factor
	MinUthd1, MinUthd2, MinUthd3	Total Harmonic Voltage Distortion Ratio
	AveFreq	Frequency
	AveUrms1, AveUrms2, AveUrms3	Voltage
	AveU+peak1, AveU+peak2, AveU+peak3	Voltage Waveform Peak+
	AveU-peak1, AveU-peak2, AveU-peak3	Voltage Waveform Peak-
	Avelrms1, Avelrms2, Avelrms3, Avelrms4	Current
TIME PLOT	Avel+peak1, Avel+peak2, Avel+peak3, Avel+peak4	Current Waveform Peak+
Average	Avel-peak1, Avel-peak2, Avel-peak3, Avel-peak4	Current Waveform Peak-
Values	AveUave	Voltage for 3phase
	Avelave	Current for 3phase
	AvePsum, AveSsum, AveQsum	Active Power, Apparent Power, Reactive Power
	AvePFsum, AveUunb	Power Factor
	AveUthd1, AveUthd2, AveUthd3	Total Harmonic Voltage Distortion Ratio
TIME PLOT	WP+, WP-	Energy (Delivered, Received)
Energy Quadergy	WQ_LAG, WQ_LEAD	Quadergy (Lagging, Leading)

Index

С

CISPR24 Curve	79
Clipboard	22, 27
Closing the Program	12
Comment field	24
CSV file	35
Current Waveforms	68, 105
Cursor Measurement	21
Custom Settings	30

D

Delta V10 Flicker	80
Demand	75, 109
Detailed Settings	31
Display modes	55
DMM display	70
Downloading	44

Е

EN50160 mode	83
Event Data	63, 101
Event details	64, 102
Event List	62, 100

Н

Harmonic Fluctuations	60
Harmonics Bar Graph	71
Harmonics List	72

IEC Flicker	81
Inrush Current	107
Installing	4, 6
Integrated Power	74, 108
Inter-Harmonic Fluctuations	61
ITIC	76
ITIC Curve	79

L

LAN	14
Loading data1	3

Μ

Measurement Result Classification	87
Measurement windows	16
Menu bar 16, 50,	92

Ρ

Pop-Up menu	16
Printing	24

R

Report	
Generating Reports	
Output Items	32
Printout Example	33
Report Wizard	
RMS Fluctuations	58, 98

S

Screens	16
Scroll bar	16
SEMI Curve	
Settings Files	46
Starting the Program	11
Status bar	16
System	82, 110

т

Time Series Graph	56,	96
Tolerance Curve		77
Tool bar	53,	95
Tool bar (window)		16

U

Uninstalling	 9
User-Defined Curve	 77

V

Vector Display	69
Voltage Fluctuation Event Graph	73, 106
Voltage Fluctuations	59, 99
Voltage Waveforms	67, 104
Voltage/Current	65, 103

Index 2

Index

Voltage/Transient	66
w	
Window Layout	26

HIOKI 9624-50 PQA-HiVIEW PRO Instruction Manual

Publication date: November 2006 Edition 1

Edited and published by HIOKI E.E. CORPORATION Technical Support Section

All inquiries to International Sales and Marketing Department 81 Koizumi, Ueda, Nagano, 386-1192, Japan TEL: +81-268-28-0562 / FAX: +81-268-28-0568 E-mail: os-com@hioki.co.jp URL http://www.hioki.co.jp/

Printed in Japan 9624C981-00

- All reasonable care has been taken in the production of this manual, but if you find any points which are unclear or in error, please contact your supplier or the International Sales and Marketing Department at HIOKI headquarters.
- In the interests of product development, the contents of this manual are subject to revision without prior notice.
- Unauthorized reproduction or copying of this manual is prohibited.



HIOKI E.E. CORPORATION

HEAD OFFICE

81 Koizumi, Ueda, Nagano 386-1192, Japan TEL +81-268-28-0562 / FAX +81-268-28-0568 E-mail: os-com@hioki.co.jp / URL http://www.hioki.co.jp/

HIOKI USA CORPORATION

6 Corporate Drive, Cranbury, NJ 08512, USA TEL +1-609-409-9109 / FAX +1-609-409-9108

9624C981-00 06-11H



Printed on recycled paper

